
 
 
 

Scrutiny Programme Board 
 

Date: Thursday, 4 March 2010 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF 

INTEREST/PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2010. 

 
3. ALLOCATION OF CALL-IN NOTICES  
 
 To consider the briefing note from the Director of Law, HR and Asset 

Management to be circulated in advance of the meeting 
 

4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - COUNCIL PROGRESS (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
5. 'ONE COUNCIL' SCRUTINY REVIEW - PROGRESS REPORT 

(Pages 13 - 18) 
 
 

Public Document Pack



6. MEMBERS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT  
 
 Notes of a meeting of the Member Training Steering Group held on 8 

February 2010 to be circulated. A further meeting of the MTSG will be 
held on 1 March 2010, which will be the subject of a verbal update. 
 

7. SCRUTINY LEAFLET (Pages 19 - 20) 
 
8. WORK PROGRAMMES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEES (Pages 21 - 64) 
 
 (a) Children and Young People 

(b) Council Excellence 
(c) Economy and Regeneration 
(d) Health and Well Being 
(e) Sustainable Communities 
 

9. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 65 - 74) 
 
10. THE FORWARD PLAN AND THE SCRUTINY FUNCTION  
 
 At its meeting on 4 February 2010 (minute 298 refers), the Cabinet 

considered a referral from the Scrutiny Programme Board (minute 37 – 
14 January 2010) in relation to the operation of the Forward Plan, 
which requested the Cabinet to agree to the following –  
 
(a) That officers include within the Forward Plan a more informative 

narrative of the key decisions to be taken, together with more 
accurate timescales. 

 
(b) That, for a short trial period, Chief Officers be required to submit 

to the next appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committee a brief 
explanation of new items included in the Forward Plan. 

 
Cabinet minute 298 resolved –  
 
(1) That officers include within the Forward Plan a more informative 

narrative of the key decisions to be taken, together with more 
accurate timescales. 

 
(2) Cabinet notes that Overview and Scrutiny Committees set their 

own agenda and can call on officers to present additional reports 
to meet their requirements. 

 
11. DRAFT PROTOCOL - SCRUTINY OF THE CRIME AND DISORDER 

REDUCTION PARTNERSHIP (Pages 75 - 82) 
 
12. ANNUAL SCRUTINY QUESTIONNAIRE (Pages 83 - 88) 
 
13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



��������	
�������	����	
�

�������	
���������	������
�

��������� ����������� �������������������

�
� ������������ ���������

���������
� ����	�
�� ��!����
�

"#$������
%��&����
"�'�������
�

�
��(������� ������������ )�*�����+��(������,��%�����

"���	�����+��(������,��������!�����
�

�
�

�-� ��������	����	��	�������	�	����������	��	���������
���	���
		
�
��&.����!����������������������!����������	�����(�����������(��/�������� ����������
��������������!������	� ���&������� ������0��������
� �,���
� ����������� ���&�����������
!�������	�!���1���&.����!������&��������������	��������������������
�(�����������
(���0��(�� �-� �,� ���� 23��3��!� ���� �������	� ���������� $����
� !������� ���	� !����
��./���������(���	�!��(���������������!������	����&�������.����������������
��,���
����
���������������������������������,�����!��((��0������0�&���1�
�
�����������"�������������������(���������������������0��������&�4�5�6(��������7�!�
8�0��������������&������9:�(�����.	�3�������,���&�.���0���&�&.����,����������	�����
�������"�������	1�
�

�4� �������		
�
��������	 �	 � !"	 " �	 #$%&"��	 �'	 " �	 #��"$%(	  ���	 �%	 )	 ����#*�+	 ,--.	 *�	
!//+����0	
�

9�� ��1���	 ��	 ��������	 
�������	 ����	 �����	 ��	 ���������	 �	
��������	��	������	�������		
�
;������� ��� &������ ��� ���� ��(��&.��� ���4�
� ���� ��.����� �&������ �:9� ��<� 2���.���
���4����,��������������������,����!��0�(��(������&���&�������(���0��(����3���,�����
�������	����0��&&��'���������&���,���,������������=���7��������5�
�
>��3�� ���� ������ ���� ����	� �(����(������� �,� ���� �������	� ���0��&&�� '����� ������
�������������=���������������������������?�����3��,���������!�����,����!�������������&���,�
��,������� �,� &���� ����� ���� �3��3��!� ���� �������	� ��&&������ ���� ��������� �����
�������������������&&��������,,������.	�������������1@�
�
������.����������������������A�����!���,������������������������0�
�!���������������
.����,��������������������1�%�!�3��
���.���������0�����������������������0��������&��
�,���,�������!�����(���,�����	��0�����.	������������� ����������������������������,���
&����(���������0�����������&�����&������������!������������	����0��&&��'����������,�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



��� ����� ����=����!����� �,,������&���� ����� ������&&�����1�"�� ���� ���0����� ���&�� �,�
��,���������������(��������������0��.	�&���������������&&�����
�!����������������	�
���0��&&��'����� .����3��� ����� !��� �((��(������ ���� ���� (��(����� ��3������ ��� ����
���&���,���,��������(���,�����	���&�3���������0����,������������	����0��&&��'��������
����� ����=���� �,,�����0� &���� ����� ���� ��&&�����
� ���� ��.����� .����3��� ����� ��� .��
�������	� ��� ���� �������B�� ������1� +�� �����,���� ����&&������ ��� ���� �������� ����� ����
���&���,���,����������������&����������0��1�
�
��.����� &������ �:9� !��� �((��3��� .	� ���� �������� ��� �� 7�3�&.��� ���4� ���� ���
�./��������������&������!��������((��3��1�
�
������������&&������������������&�����0������7�3�&.������4��&���������������,����
�
���� '����� ���� ��A������� �����,�������� ,��&� ���� ��������� �,� 8�!
� %$� ���� "�����
����0�&���� �,� ���� ���&�� �,� $�,������� ��� ��������� ��� ���� &�������&� ,��� ����
����������� �,� ����=��� �������1� +�� ���(����
� ����%���� �,� 8�0��� ������&.��� ���3�����
(��(���������������������������!�������0�������1�
�
��������	�	� !"	 " $�	#!""�+	*�	2�%�$��+��	 '&+" �+	!"	 " �	%�3"	#��"$%(	�'	 " �	
��!+�4	  !�$%(	 +�(!+�	 "�	 " �	 $%'�+#!"$�%	 "�	 *�	 2$+2&�!"��	 "�	��#*�+�	 *5	 " �	
�$+�2"�+	�'	�!64	��	!%�	���"	�!%!(�#�%"0	
�

9�� �������	�������	��	��1���
����		
�
"�� ���� &�����0� ����� ��� �:� 7�3�&.��� ���4� �&������ ���� ��,����
� ���� ��.�����
����������� ���� ����&&���������� �,� ���� �������	� ���0��&&��'����� �������� �:� ���
7�3�&.��� ���4�� ��,����� ��� ��������� ��� ��&.���B� �������0� ���� ��3���(&���1� ����
��.�����5�
�

���� �������������������	����0��&&��'�����,���������,�����C�
�

����� ����������������������3��!���������	�.���0�������.	������������B������,�#?�����3��
���(��0���������������������&.���B��������0�������3���(&�������������0�������
�������0�3�������
��������0�.��0���������������0�(��3������������������&�����0�
�,���������,�#?�����3�
���.�������������,�����%������,������(���������3���������
������&.���B��������0��������0�)���(�!����� ������	� .�� ����� ��� �������� ������
������C�����

�

������ ��A������� ����� ��������,�#?�����3�� ��(���� .���� ��� ��� ��� ���������&����,� ������
������������ ���� ��� ���� �������	� ���0��&&�� '����� ���� ���� #&(��	&���� ����
"((����&�������&&�����������������������((�������	1�

�
���� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ���� (��3��� ��,,������ ��� �����0�� �� &�����0� �!��0� ���
&�&.���B� ������ ��&&��&����1� %�!�3��
� �����0�&����� ���� ��!� .���� &���� ����
������!��� ��� .�� ��&�����0� �,� ������&.����������0��������0�)���(� ���-�;�.����	�
����1� "��� �,� ���� &�&.���� ���� ���� ����3���� ����,����� %������ ���� �0����� ��� ������1�
2���� ����&�����0����� ������(����
��� ,������� ��(����!�����.��&���� ��� �����������	�
���0��&&��'������������(��������0��������	������&��1�
�
��������	�	� !"	" $�	*�	%�"��0	
�
�
�

Page 2



9�� ����������	��������	,--.		
�
��������������,�8�!
�%$�����"���������0�&����(���������,�����,��&����������(	��,�
���� ������� ,��� ��.���� �������	� ��,���� (�.��������� >�������,��� �������	� ���4� 5�
2���������0���������� �����.�����������	@1� �����,�����0���0����� �?�&(���� �,�!�����
�������	� !��� !�����0� ����!����� ��� (��&����� ���� 3����� ����� ���=�?�����3��� ���� ���
���(��0� ���(�� ���� !�	� (�.���� ���3����� !���� ����3����1� ���� �?�&(���� ����������
!������ ����(�.���������!����0��������,��&������������,�����.�����������	B������)����
�������	� "!����
� !����� !���� �!������ ��� ������ ���4� "������ ���,������1� ���	�
(��3����� �� ���� �,� ����� ��������!����� ��������.����	� �����0�&����� �����?�&(��,����
�����,���(�����(�����,� �,,����3�� �������	1�"��� ��&�����������?�������� ���� ����3���3��
(�������������?�&(�����,�!����������.�������3����������!��������������������	�!�����
�,,��� �������0�&���� ��� �������	� (������������� ���� (����	� &������ ������� ���� (�.����
������1�
�
��&.���� ��&&������ �(��� ���� ����� ,��� ���� ��&.���� �,� 23��3��!� ���� �������	�
��&&������� ��� .�� ����3��	� ��3��3��� ��� ���� �������	� ,�������� ���� ��� ����� ��&&����	�
(������(�����1� +�� ������ ��� �������0�� (�.���� ��0�0�&���
� ��&.���� (��(����� ����
(�����������,����������	����,����������������3��!���,������������������(���!�����������
���	�!���������.��������./�����,��������	1�
�
��������	�		
	

789	 � !"	" �	��%"+�	'�+	
&*�$2	�2+&"$%5	/&*�$2!"$�%	:�&22���'&�	�2+&"$%5	,--.	
�	�&"�"!%�$%(	
+!2"$2�	$%	
&*�$2	�2+&"$%5;	*�	%�"��0	

	

7,9	 � !"	 " �	 �$+�2"�+	 �'	 �!64	 ��	 !%�	 ���"	 �!%!(�#�%"	 *�	 +�<&��"��	 "�	
/+���%"	 !	 �2+&"$%5	 ��!'��"	 '�+	 2�%�$��+!"$�%	 !"	 " �	 %�3"	 #��"$%(	 �'	 " �	
��!+�0	

�
99� ������	��������	��1���	�	
�������	��
���		

�
����������(�������������(�����,�����"��������������	���������&.�����(���(��0�����
�,� ����"������� �������	�$�3��!1�%�� ��������� ���� ���(�� �,� ���� ��3��!
� !����� !�����
,����� (����������	� ��� ������ ������� ����� !���� !������ ���� ������� ���(����.����	� �,� ����
�������1� +��!���(��(����� ����
����� ��� ������0��(��,����������0��,��������,��?�����3��
�������0��&��0�	���0�(��(��
�������������,������,�������3��!�!�����.������>����������
��������.	�	���0�(��(������*�����@1�
�
+��!���(������������&(���������,�������(����,�������"��������������	�$�3��!�.�,��������
�����,�����&�����(���	��������������������������������(���,�������������.������������
��������&����������.�������,���0�������0��3������1�
�
��&.�������������������������(��������	����������3���,��&�������������������������
"��������������	�$�3��!
�!�����������,,�������&��0��������.���3��������������������
�,����������������'�������������,�'���������1�"���&.����,���&.�����?(�������������
����0���&����!��������&.����,�(�������������������
�(����������	�!�������	�(�����3������
.����������������������,,�����������������������������0��,��,,=�������������������������,�
�������� ��� 	���0� (��(��� ������ ���� �0�� �,� �-1� 2����� ��&.���� A���������� ����
�./����3��	��,��������(����
�����������(��������((���������.��(��&����0�����������,���
(���	�(���������(��(����1�
�

Page 3



��������	�		
	

789	 � !"	" �	�2�/�	'�+	" �	�2� ��	�2+&"$%5	���$�64	��"	�&"	$%	//�%�$3	8	"�	
" �	+�/�+"	%�6	�&*#$""��4	*�	�%��+���0	

	

7,9	 � !"	" �	
!%��	��#*�+�	*�	2�%'$+#��	!�	��&%2$���+�	%%	�+$���%4	� +$�	
��!��%4	�!��	�$"2 ���	!%�	�&�	�!5��+0	

	

7=9	 � !"	" �	+��/�%��	"�	" �	���$�6	*�	%�"��0	
�

9�� ���>���	�	���	�������		
�
���� ������ ��&&������ ����� ���� ������ �,� /������ �(� !�����0� ������� ��������
��(���&������������������3������(�������������.����������,����.	���&.�������(�����,�
�����������	�*�������0��&&�1�%�����0�������3��!���,�����'�������������!�.�������
���������&������,��!��������!����������!���(��,���.��������&&������������	�(�������
�
���,����!��0��������������������������	�����1���&.����(��(������������*�����0�����	�
.������.����������������������������������	�����������������(���,�������3��!1�����3��!��
�,�����*�����0�����	�!����������.����������������������?��&�����0��,�����'����1�
�
��������	�		
	

789	 � !"	!	��+?$%(	
!+"5	2�#/+$�$%(	!��	��#*�+�	�'	" �	�2+&"$%5	
+�(+!##�	
��!+�	 *�	 ��"!*�$� ��	 "�	 2�%�$��+	 " �	 �2�/�	 �'	 !	 �2+&"$%5	 +��$�6	 $%	
+��!"$�%	"�	@�$%��	&/	6�+?$%(	!2+���	" �	��&%2$�0	

	

7,9	 � !"	" �	�''$2�+�	*�	+�<&��"��	"�	!++!%(�	!	#��"$%(	�'	" �	��+?$%(	
!+"5	
$%	!��!%2�	�'	" �	%�3"	#��"$%(	�'	" �	��!+�0	

�
9<� ����������	���	���	�����	�	������	��	�1������	����		

�
;������� ��� &������ �9� ��� 7�3�&.��� ���4�
� ���� ��������� �,� 8�!
� %$� ���� "�����
����0�&���� ��(������ ����� �������,�� (�������� ��� ���(���� �,� ���� D����������B������� ,���
"�����B� ���,"�� ���� .���� ����������� ��� ���� ��&.���� �,� ���� �������� ���� ����� ���
��&&����� ���� .���� �����3��1� ���� (�������� ���� .���� ��������� .	� ���� ��.�����
�&������ �9E� �4� ����&.��� ���4�� ��,����� ���� ����&&������ ��� ���� �������� ,���
���(���������������������������<��,������������B���������������5��������������������1�
�
����������������������(��(������������������,��3�������������(���&.�������0�������0�
��,��&������������������	������������������,���"�����
�!�����!����������.��(���������
��� ���� ��.����F�������� ,��� �������������
� �((��3��� ���� ���(����1� "� ��&.���
�?(������� ���� 3��!� ����� ���� (������� ���&��� ���� ��,,������ ��� ������ ��� �����3�� ��
(��.��&1�+�����(����
�����������������������������������,"�����������	�.�������������
������������!���������������3�������3����.��������������������������������(��.��&�����
,�����1���������������!������������������������&.��������3�������0�������,�������
����
�����������&�������������������������0�2,,���������������������������0��������������
���������������0�������?�����0�&����1�
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	��2�+�	!%�	��$��%2�	�+!$�	*�	�%��+���4	"�	*�	!//�%���	"�	
" �	��&%2$���+	�!��	'�+	2"$�%	/+�"�2��4	!%�	+�'�++��	"�	" �	�!*$%�"���&%2$�	'�+	
2�%�$��+!"$�%�!//+��!�	!%�	!��/"$�%0	

Page 4



�
9:� �
���	��	���	����������		

�
��������������,�8�!
�%$�����"���������0�&����(��3���������3��3��!��������������
����&����(��3��������,�����,����!��0�(�������,���!���0��������
�!������,,����������!�	�
������������	�!������.���((����������!������������,������5��
�

•� ����8�����)�3���&����������.����+�3��3�&�������%������"������E
�!�������&��
������,,���������"(�������4C�

•� ����������������������"������:
�!�������&��������,,�������9��"(�������4C�����

•� ���� 8����� ��&�����	
� #����&��� ��3���(&���� ���� ������������� "��� ���4
�
!����������3���$�	���"������������7�3�&.������41�

�
%�� ��&&������ ����� ����� ���� ��(���&���� �,� %������ !��� ��3��!��0�%������ �������	�
���������,������������������������(�(���D�����0������0�8�������&�����	B
��������.	�
���� ��(���&���� �,� ��&&�������� ���� 8����� )�3���&���
� !����� �?(������ !�������
������0�3���&������������(�!�����������������&��������	G���������0��
����(�����,�����
)�3���&���G�� ���3�� ��� ����!� '������G�� ��&�����	� ���� .����� ������ ��� ���� (���������
�	���&����������3���1�
�
������ !���� !���� ���0��0� (��(������ ���� ���� ��� ���� ������������� ����&���� !����
� �,�
�&(��&�����
���������3��,����������0��&(����������,�������,�������,�������0�3���&���1�
����(�(�����������������&���,���������0���(��(�����������.�������3�����(���	�.������
����� ���� ���� (���&������ ,��� ���� ��.���� �3��� ���� ��?�� ,�3�� ��� ���� 	����1� +�� �����
����0�����������(��(�������������(�(���!������&(��������������������������������������
��������������	���������������������������0����������������	���3��0��&����������������
�,��&(��&�����0�(��(����������������������������!�����.��,���	�����(��(���	�,������.	�
������(���&�����,���&&������������8�����)�3���&���1���&.������&&�������(���
���� 3����� �,� �� (������������ ��� ���� ��&.���� �,� ���� �������� �,� ���� �&(���� �,� ��!�
��0��������1�
�
��������	�		
	

789	 � !"	 " �	 /+�(+���	 �'	 " �	 ��($��!"$�%4	 " !"	  !�	 �+	6$��	 !''�2"	 " �	 +�#$"	 �'	
�2+&"$%54	��"	�&"	$%	" �	+�/�+"	%�6	�&*#$""��4	*�	%�"��0	

	

7,9	 � !"	" �	/+�(+���	�'	" �	��/!+"#�%"	�'	��!�" A�	+��$�6	�'	��!�" 	�2+&"$%5	
*�	%�"��0	

	

7=9	 � !"	!	'&+" �+	+�/�+"	*�	/+���%"��	"�	!	'&"&+�	#��"$%(	�'	" �	��!+�	&/�%	
" �	 ��"!$�	 �'	 " �	 ��/!+"#�%"	 �'	 ��##&%$"$��	 !%�	 ��2!�	 ����+%#�%"A�	
+��/�%��	 "�	 " �	2�%�&�"!"$�%	2!++$��	�&"	 '����6$%(	 " �	/&*�$2!"$�%	�'	 $"�	
2�%�&�"!"$�%	 /!/�+	 :�"+�%(" �%$%(	 ��2!�	 ��#�2+!25;4	 ��""$%(	 �&"	 " �	
/+�/����	%�3"	�"�/�0	

	

7)9	 � !"	 !	 /+���%"!"$�%	 "�	 ��#*�+�	 �%	 " �	 $#/!2"	 �'	 %�6	 ��($��!"$�%	 *�	
&%��+"!?�%	!�	/!+"	�'	" �	��#*�+	������/#�%"	"+!$%$%(	+�($#�0	

�
�
�
�

Page 5



9E� ���	������	
��	��	���	��������	��������		
�
;������� ��� &������ �E� ��� 7�3�&.��� ���4�
� ���� ��������� �,� 8�!
� %$� ���� "�����
����0�&���� (��3����� ��� �3��3��!� �,� ���� �(�������� �,� ���� ;��!���� ����� �,�  �	�
���������
�!�����!���(��(�����.	�����8�������,������������������3�����(�������,�,����
&�����
�.�0�����0�!��������,�������	��,���	�&����1�+��!����(������&�����	������������0�
.��������� ��� ���������������,� ���� �	������������,� ������.����
�����&&�������,� ����
��.����
� ����3��������&.�����,�������.����
��,,�����
���������� /����������0�&����� ���
���� ��������,� �����������0���,�#?�����3�� ,��������� �����!�����?(������ ���.�� ������
�����0��������&�1����������������������������,���������,�����	����������������&&������
����
�,��������3���������,����.�
���	�����������((��3��0�(��(������,�������&����0����
�&���&���� �,� �� (���� ��� .��0��� !����� ��A������ ���� �((��3��� �,� ���� �������� !���
��0�������������	���������1�
�
"�� ����� &�����0� �,� ���� �������	� ���0��&&�� '����
� ��&.���� !���� ��3����� ���
��������������������B���������;��!����������,� �	�����������(�.��������������+��������
�����0���
� ��� ���� ��0��� �,� ����23��3��!������������	�*�������0��&&�
�!������� ���
����������� ��	� �,� ���� ���&�� ������� ,��� ��������� ����� ,���� !������ ������ ��&��
� .�����0� ���
&������&���������������������������3����.��1�%�!�3��
���&.����!�����,������(������
����� ���� ������� ���� ���(�� �,� ��	� ���������� ��� .�� ������ !���� ���� ��!�	�� ������ ���
�.3����1������A�����	
���&.����!������&���&���������.��������!�����?����	�!������
.�� �����&����� ������ �,���� ���� �����&�������� ���� �������	� .����&���1� ���� ���������
���,��&�����������!������?(�����!�	������&(��3������;��!���������������(����.����
�����&.���1�
�
����;��!������������.�����������	���&.������������������ �	�������������������������
;��!���������.�,���� ���	�!���� �����
�����!��0� ���&� �������� ������.�������������,�
2,,�����������������,��������������������	�!�����.�����������
������������������������
���������&����0�!��� ��.���� ���� .����� ��� �� ������ ,�����01�%�!�3��
� (��=�������	�
&�	� .�� 3��!��� ��� �� .������� ����� ������ ����	� (����	
� !���� ���������� !���� ������	�
��0��1�
�
���� ��������� ��,������ ����� ��� ���� )������� #?��(����� ���� �(������ 6�0���	� $�����
���������� !������ ���� "������ ��� +�,��&������ ���������� $����� ���� ��������� ����
�����&��������!��������3��3��!������������	���&&��������������A���������#?�����3��
���(�����������(������������������� �������������������	���������������
�!�����!�������
������������ ����;��!������������ ������./�����,� ����0��������?��(�����(������������
������./�����,�����0���&����!����������3����23��3��!������������	���&&�����������
�
�����������,�#?�����3���,�������������������$�����<1�
�
��&.������&&�������������&������,��&���3���������3���,��������&������������!������
����;��!���������!��������.�����.������������������0��,������������������.�������1�
+����������
�&���������������&��������,�����������������������!���������������!�����
���.����,,����3��(��=�������	����.������������1�
�
��������	�		
	

789	 � !"	" �	+�/�+"	*�	%�"��0	
	

7,9	 � !"4	$%	�+��+	"�	#!?�	" �	��+6!+�	
�!%	#�+�	&��+�'+$�%��5	!%�	"�	!��$�"	
" �	�2+&"$%5	'&%2"$�%4	" �	�!*$%�"	*�	+�<&��"��	"�	!(+��	"�	" �	'����6$%(	�		

	

Page 6



7!9	 � !"	 �''$2�+�	 $%2�&��	6$" $%	 " �	��+6!+�	
�!%	 !	#�+�	 $%'�+#!"$��	
%!++!"$��	 �'	 " �	 ?�5	 ��2$�$�%�	 "�	 *�	 "!?�%4	 "�(�" �+	 6$" 	 #�+�	
!22&+!"�	"$#��2!���0	

	
7*9	 � !"4	'�+	!	� �+"	"+$!�	/�+$��4	� $�'	�''$2�+�	*�	+�<&$+��	"�	�&*#$"	"�	

" �	 %�3"	 !//+�/+$!"�	 ���+�$�6	 !%�	 �2+&"$%5	 ��##$""��	 !	 *+$�'	
�3/�!%!"$�%	�'	%�6	$"�#�	$%2�&���	$%	" �	��+6!+�	
�!%0	

�
9-� ���>	
��������	��	�1��1���	��	��������	����������		

�
��&.���������3�����(�������������0�����!����(��0��&&����,� ����,����!��0��3��3��!�
�����������	���&&������
�!�����������������������������,�����!�	�������������	���(���
!�����.��������!����������&��������,�������!�������.����&(����1�5��
�
���� �������������H���0����(���
�.�� ��������#?���������
���� #����&	�����$�0����������
���� %����������*����'���0�
���� ��������.�����&&��������
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	+�/�+"�	*�	%�"��0	
�

94� ��1���	��	��������	���>	
�������		
�
���� ������ (��������� ��� �(������ ���������0� $�(���� ��� ���� ��&&������� *����
���0��&&�
�������������0�3����&.���������((�������	������3��!���������������,�����!�
���&�����.�������1�
�
��������	�	� !"	" �	+�/�+"	*�	%�"��0	
�
�
� � �

�

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD – 4 MARCH 2010  
 
REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE 
SERVICES 
 
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY – COUNCIL PROGRESS 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Executive Summary 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of The Council’s achievements 

in order to be awarded Level 3 of the Equality Standard for Local Government in 
November 2009, and to highlight the role of scrutiny in order for the Council to reach 
‘Excellent’ status of the new Equality Framework for Local Government by November 
2011.  

  
2. Background  
2.1 Achieving level 3 is a major milestone for the Council.  However, not only did the 

Council achieve level 3, the Improvement and Development Agency assessors 
stated it was a ‘good and solid level 3’. 

 
2.2   When the assessors initially visited the Council in May 2009, it should be noted that 
   their decision not to award Level 3 at that time was because the Council was only ‘a 
   hair’s breadth away and the submission of further evidence by September 2009   
   should ensure a more favourable outcome’. 
 
2.2   The Council’s many equality achievements over the last two years demonstrate its 

  commitment to embedding equality and diversity across everything that it does as an 
  organisation (as an employer, a service provider, a commissioner of services and 
  within its leadership role for communities). 

 
2.3   The Council formally adopted the Equality Standard in October 2004 to show its   

  commitment to addressing equality issues.  The Council self-assessed for Level 2 of 
  the Equality Standard in March 2007, but at this time did not have a dedicated post to 
  progress equality and diversity issues further.  Therefore a decision was made within 
 the Corporate Services department to invest resources into such a post. 

 
2.4   In November 2007 the Council successfully recruited a new Corporate Equality and 

  Diversity Co-ordinator, Jacqui Cross.  Shortly after, John Webb became the lead 
  Director for equality and diversity, the Portfolio Holder for Community and Customer 
  Engagement and Chair of the Excellence committee became equality Member   
  champions, all of which has significantly improved the Council’s capacity to provide 
  the necessary leadership and expertise to ensure equality and diversity issues are 
  embedded across the organisation.  

 
2.5  The Council allocated resources, established a more robust governance 

 infrastructure, involved key stakeholders, and set very clear aims and objectives in 
 order to be awarded Level 3. 

 
2.6  Regarding the equality agenda, the Council has led the way in Wirral in so many 

 ways.  For example: 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 

 

• The Chief Executive personally overseeing the Level 3 action plan. 
 

• Enabling the Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee to facilitate 
briefings and training for Members. 

 

• Producing a single equality scheme that covers all six strands of equality (race, 
gender and transgender, disability, age, sexual orientation, and religion or 
belief). 

 

• Developing an online equality and diversity training package for all staff and 
Members to ensure we all have the same level of awareness about the issues 
(5,100 staff and Members have completed the training). 

 

• Organising an annual Diversity Day event at Wallasey Town Hall, attracting 
many people from across Wirral (nearly 1,000 people attended the last event in 
November 2009). 

 

• Producing an equality impact assessment template that is now recognised as 
an example of best practice by the North West Employers’ Organisation’s 
Equality Gateway. 

 

• Developing a brand for the Council’s equality programme (Equality Watch and 
jellybeans) that is now recognised across Wirral’s communities as the Council’s 
commitment to equality issues. 

 

• Producing an equality profile of the Council workforce to help us work towards 
being a more modern, diverse and representative organisation. 

 

• Establishing a Corporate Equality Group that has resolved workforce issues, 
produced excellent policies and strategies, and has showcased numerous 
community services and activities. 

 

• Producing quarterly equality monitoring reports that clearly highlight progress 
across all departments. 

 

• Establishing an Equality Watch membership scheme which has over 300 
members to date receiving newsletters and bulletins on a regular basis from the 
Council’s equality and diversity team. 

 

• Producing a Gender Identity policy in partnership with TransWirral to support 
any transgender member of staff or elected Member. 

 

• Establishing Chief Officers as Champions for each of the equality strands. 
 

• Understanding more the equality profile of our customer base in Wirral, in order 
to gain an insight into their experience of accessing and receiving Council 
services.  This information will enable us to understand the nature and extent of 
inequalities in accessibility and standard of services. 

 
 

Page 10



 

3. Beyond Level 3  
3.1   In order for Councils to be able to respond to new thinking on equality outcomes, the 
   Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA) has developed a new Equality   
   Framework for Local Government.  This has now replaced the original Equality   
   Standard. 
 
3.2   Instead of reaching Levels 1 to 5, Councils will now work towards three levels: 
 

• Developing 

• Achieving 

• Excellent 
 
3.3 Any Council already at level 1 or 2 of the original Standard will automatically migrate 
 to ‘Developing’ status, and any Council already at level 3 will migrate to ‘Achieving’ 
 status, etc. 
 
3.4 Wirral Council has automatically migrated to ‘Achieving’ status of the new Framework, 
 and will need to be assessed for ‘Excellent’ status by November 2011 or risk having 
 ‘Achieving’ status removed.  Therefore, an action plan for reaching ‘Excellent’ status is 
 currently being developed by the Corporate Equality and Diversity team. 
 
 
4. The role of Scrutiny in reaching ‘Excellent’ status  
 
4.1 The Equality Framework for Local Government highlights the need for effective 

scrutiny in the following areas: 
 

a. Is the Council meeting its equality objectives in partnership with others? 
b. Is the Council able to identify how communities are changing and the impact 

this may have on equality priorities? 
c. Can the Council demonstrate improvements and outcomes as a result of its 

Equality Scheme? 
d. Is the Council scrutinising its own and its partnerships’ performance with 

regard to equality objectives and outcomes? 
e. Can the Council demonstrate that commissioned / procured services are 

delivering the Council’s equality objectives? 
f. Are communities involved in the scrutiny process? 
g. Do Members and Senior Officers demonstrate personal leadership and 

understand the relevance of equality and cohesion to their local communities? 
h. Are equality impact assessments built into all aspects of decision-making, 

scrutiny and policy reviews? 
 
5. Recommendations 
 
5.1    The Scrutiny Programme Board notes the progress made to date. 
 
5.2   The Scrutiny Programme Board agrees to further develop the scrutiny function to 
    incorporate the criteria of the Equality Framework for Local Government.  
 
 JIM. WILKIE 
 DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / DIRECTOR 

OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



  

WIRRAL BOROUGH COUNCIL    
 
SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD - 4th MARCH 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE ‘ONE COUNCIL’ MEMBERS’ WORKING GROUP  
 
‘ONE COUNCIL’ SCRUTINY REVIEW - PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an update on progress for the ‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review. 
 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 At the Scrutiny Programme Board meeting held on 14th January 2010, members 

agreed:  
 

(1)    That a Working Party comprising all Members of the Scrutiny Programme Board 
be established to consider the scope of a scrutiny review in relation to joined up 
working across the Council. 

(2)    That the officers be requested to arrange a meeting of the Working Party in 
advance of the next meeting of the Board. 

 

1.2 A Working Group of Scrutiny Programme Board members was held on Friday 12th 
February 2010. This report provides details of the outcome of that meeting, to which 
six members of the Scrutiny Programme Board were able to attend. 

 
 
2.  Scope of the Review 
 
2.1 Members agreed that the objective of the review should be to improve the quality of 

service provided by staff and therefore to enhance the level of service provided to 
constituents by: 

• Reviewing the effectiveness of joined up working between different 
Department’s within the Council, and 

• Determining whether any duplication of effort takes place.  
  
2.2 Reviewing this topic across the whole of the Council would be an enormous and 

impractical task. Members therefore agreed to focus particularly on the operation of 
the Call Centre and the One Stop Shops. The reasons for this selection were to: 

 

• Narrow the scope of the review. 

• Review an area which has a direct impact on customer satisfaction. 

• Focus on service providers who clearly have to interact on a regular basis with 
other departments across the Council. 

• Include service areas which require staff to have knowledge regarding the 
delivery of a large number of services and in which training is therefore 
essential. 

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



  

 
2.3 The draft Scope Document, produced as a result of the meeting on 12th February, is 

attached as Appendix 1 to this report. Committee members are requested to consider 
this draft document for approval. 

 
 
3. Timescale for the Review 
 
3.1 Due to the impending election period, it is suggested that, once the Scope for this 

review is agreed, no further action be taken in the current municipal year. The ‘One 
Council’ review will be included on the agenda for the first meeting of the Scrutiny 
Programme Board in the 2010/11 municipal year. The new membership of the Board 
will then be able to include this item in the work programme and agree the 
membership of the Panel to take this work forward.  

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
(1) That the Committee approve the Scope for the ‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review, as 

detailed in Appendix 1.  
 
(2) That the Scrutiny Programme Board further discuss the plans for the ‘One Council’ 

Scrutiny review at the first meeting in the new municipal year.  
 
  
 
 
 
Report of the Scrutiny Programme Board Chair: 
Cllr Dave Mitchell  
 
(16/02/10) 

Page 14



  

Appendix 1:  Scope Document for the ‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review   
  
Date: 16th February 2010      
 
Review Title: ‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review  
 

 
Scrutiny Panel Chair: 
To be agreed 
 

 
Contact details:  
 
    

 
Scrutiny Officer: 
To be agreed 
 

 
Contact details: 
 

 
Departmental Link Officer: 
To be agreed 
 

 
Contact details: 
 

 
Panel members: 
To be agreed 
 

 
Contact details: 
 

Other Key Officer contacts: 
 

 
 

 

 
1. Which of our strategic corporate objectives does this topic address? 
1.1  To create an excellent Council, in particular: 
        -  To improve accountability, accessibility and openness and involve those who 
            use our services in their design and delivery 
 

 

2. What are the main issues? 
This review will focus on ‘One Council’ – investigating the issue of joined up working 
across Council Departments in order to avoid duplication. 
As the scope is potentially very wide, it has been agreed to initially focus on two 
areas providing frontline services, the Call Centre and the One Stop Shops. It may 
be feasible to investigate further areas of the Council organisation as a secondary 
stage to the review, with a view to rolling out any recommendations to other areas. 
 
The initial review will consider:  
2.1  What services are provided by the Call Centre and the One Stop Shops? 
2.2  How effectively do the Call Centre and One Stop Shops integrate with other 
departments in order to manage the resolution of issues? 
2.3  How and at what frequency is training delivered to staff in the Call Centre and 
One Stop Shops? 
2.4  Is the training provided by a single training function within HR or by individual 
departments?  
2.5  Are staff in the Call Centre and One Stop Shops aware of their role in the ‘wider’ 
Council? Do employees have an holistic understanding of how the borough works? 
2.6  How are staff recruited to the Call Centre and One Stop Shops? 
2.7  Does the customer receive an effective service from the Call Centre and One 
Stop Shops? 
 

Page 15



  

 

 
3. The Committee’s overall aim/objective in doing this work is: 
 
To improve the quality of service provided by staff and therefore to enhance the level 
of service provided to constituents by: 

• Reviewing the effectiveness of joined up working between different 
Department’s within the Council, and 

• Determining whether any duplication of effort takes place.  
 

 
4. The possible outputs/outcomes are: 
4.1   To ensure that front-line staff are fully aware of their role in delivering the wider 
objectives of the Council.  
4.2   To provide effective communication between the front-line service providers, 
relevant back office staff and the customers. 
4.3   More effective use of staff by reducing duplication of effort. 
4.4   Ensure that staff are as effectively trained as possible. 
 

 
5. What specific value can scrutiny add to this topic? 
To use new evidence to enable changes which would lead to the outcomes listed in 
section 4 above. 
 

 
6. Who will the Committee be trying to influence as part of its work? 
6.1   Appropriate Cabinet members of Wirral Borough Council 
6.2   Senior Managers of Wirral Borough Council 
 

 
7. Duration of enquiry? 
The scope will be prepared in anticipation of this review commencing early in the 
2010/11 Municipal year. The review will then be completed during that Municipal 
year, depending on the priorities determined by the new Committee members.  
 

8. What category does the review fall into? 
 
Policy Review       x  Policy Development 

 
External Partnership  Performance Management        
 
Holding Executive to Account  
 

9. Extra resources needed? Would the investigation benefit from the co-
operation of an expert witness? 
The review will be conducted by councillors with the support of existing officers.  
However, the panel are looking for advice from people with expertise on this topic. 
 

 

Page 16



  

 

 
10. What information do we need? 
 

 
10.1 Secondary information 
(background information, existing 
reports, legislation, central 
government documents, etc). 
 
Recent Committee / Cabinet reports. 
 
The outcomes from a scrutiny 
investigation into the operation of the 
Call Centre by the former Community 
and Customer Engagement Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee during 2007/8. 
 
Relevant national documents, from 
advisory bodies such as IDeA. 
 
Reports from other councils into similar 
topics. 
 
Examples of good practice from other 
Councils or Merseytravel’s ‘One team; 
One Family’. 

 
10.2  Primary/new 
evidence/information 
 
 
 
Interviews with key officers  
 
Statistics for the Call Centre and One 
Stop Shops, including the number of calls 
handled successfully. 
 
 
 
Visits to Wirral Call Centre and One stop 
Shops 
 
Visits to Call Centres operated by both 
other councils and in the private sector 
  
Assessment of the effectiveness of 
customer service offered by the call 
centre and One stop Shops. 

 
10.3  Who can provide us with further 
relevant evidence? (Cabinet portfolio 
holder, officer, service user, general 
public, expert witness, etc). 
council officers to include: 
 
Ian Coleman (Director of Finance) 
 
Malcolm Flanagan (Head of Service, 
Customer service, Finance dept) 
 
Andrea Bruffell (Manager, Call Centre)   
 
Julie Williams (Manager, One Stop 
Shops) 
 
Appropriate front-line staff from Call 
Centre and One Stop Shops  
 
Appropriate Training manager / HR 
manager  
 

 
10.4  What specific areas do we want 
them to cover when they give 
evidence? 
 
 
 
Services provided by the Call Centre and 
the One Stop Shops. 
 
Processes for the Call Centre and One 
Stop Shops to manage issues with other 
departments 
 
Details of training (including frequency) 
delivered to staff in the Call Centre and 
One Stop Shops 
 
Awareness of staff in the Call Centre and 
One Stop Shops regarding their role in 
the ‘wider’ Council. 
 
Methods of recruitment for Call Centre 
and One Stop Shop staff. 
 
 

Page 17



  

 

 
11. What processes can we use to feed into the review? (site 
visits/observations, face-to-face questioning, telephone survey, written 
questionnaire, etc).  
 
11.1   Meetings with officers 
11.2   Visits to Wirral Call Centre and One Stop Shops 
11.3   Visits to Call Centres in operated by both other councils and in the private 
sector 
11.4   Desk-top analysis 
11.5   Possible mystery shopping 
11.6   Possible questionnaire of customers regarding the level of service received. 
 

 
12. In what ways can we involve the public and at what stages? (consider 
whole range of consultative mechanisms, local committees and local ward 
mechanisms). 
12.1   Area Forum meetings / Focus groups 
12.2   Possible customer questionnaire 
 

 
 

Page 18



A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 7

P
a
g
e
 1

9



P
a

g
e
 2

0



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

UPDATE ON WORK PROGRAMME: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OSC – 
16 March  2010 

 
It was agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs Group in September 2008 to use the following reports to monitor the work programme for each 
Scrutiny Committee. The last item on each Scrutiny Committee agenda should be ‘Review of the Committee Work Programme’.  
 
 
Report 1 - Monitoring Report for Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
 
This report will list all items that have been selected by the Committee for inclusion on the work programme for the current year. 
 
For each item on the work programme, the report will give a description, an indication of how the item will be dealt with, a relative 
timescale for the work and brief comments on progress.  
 
 
Report 2 - Suggestions for Additions to Work Programme  
 
The Work Programme for the Committee should be reviewed at each meeting. This will include members having the opportunity to 
ask for new Items to be added to the programme. This report will list any newly suggested items. Committee will then have the 
opportunity to agree (or not) for them to be added to the programme.  
   
 
Report 3 - Proposed Outline Meeting Schedule for the Municipal Year 
 
The report will, for each scheduled Committee meeting, list those items which are likely to be on the meeting agenda. This will give 
the opportunity for Committee members to take a greater lead in organising their work programme. 
 
 
Report 4 - Progress Report on In-Depth Panel Reviews 
 
This report will give a very brief update on progress / timescales for in-depth panel reviews which are in the ‘ownership’ of the 
Committee. 

 
 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 8

P
a
g
e
 2

1



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

 
REPORT 1 

MONITORING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME  

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 2009 / 2010 
 

 
 
 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete/ 
Review date 

      

2006 Report on the Support Given to Schools Pre- 
and Post-Ofsted Inspections 

Panel Review  Final Report produced April 2007. 
Implementation of recommendations to 
be monitored by Standards sub-
committee. 

 
Complete 

2006 Fostering Service Review Panel Review  Final Report produced March 2008. 
Report discussed by Cabinet on 10th 
December. Implementation of 
recommendations to be monitored at a 
later date.  

 
Review /update 
January 2010 

Oct 2007 
 
 

Youth Outreach Review Panel Review Report 
agreed Nov 
2008 

Final Report to Scrutiny Committee on 
11th Nov. Report discussed by Cabinet 
on 10th December 08. 

 
16 March 2010 

July 2008 
 

Update on Special Schools Officer reports  Report to Committee 11th Nov. 
OSC members to visit schools. 

 

July 2008 
 

Transition from Children’s to Adult Social 
Services 

Officer Report  Report to Committee 16th March. Item 
deferred until meeting in June 2009 

 
June 2010 

July 2008 
 

NEET rates  - in particular, what has been the 
impact of specific projects aimed at NEETs?  

Officer Report  Report to Committee 13th Jan 2009. OSC 
to receive further report on preventative 
measure at key stage 4 and Knowsley 
apprentice programme 

 
 
 

July 2008 Behavioural Issues and Exclusions 
 

Officer Report  Report noted at OSC – 11 Nov 08  

P
a

g
e
 2

2



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

 
July 2008 

 
School Funding 

 
To be agreed 

  
Notice has been given that the Committee 
intend to scrutinize School Funding during 
the 2009 / 10 municipal year. 

 

Oct 2008 Wirral Music Service Officer Report  Committee requested a further report 
during a budget savings debate on the 
Wirral Music Service on 28.10.08. At OSC 
on 13.01.09 a request for further statistics 
was made.  An Annual report has been 
requested. 

. 
 
16 March 2010 

Nov 2008 Early Years Education Officer Report  Item requested by Sheila Clarke (11th 
Nov meeting). Report noted at OSC 
16.3.09 

 
Complete 

Nov 2008 Private Fostering Officer report  Item discussed by OSC on 11th Nov 
2008. Members requested another report 
in one year’s time. As a result of the 
Ofsted Annual Performance Letter, it was 
agreed on 13/01/09 that a report would be 
produced for the March meeting.  

 
 
January 2010 

Nov 2008 Wirral Adoption Service Officer Report  Item discussed by OSC on 11th Nov 
2008. Further reports to be produced on 
the Adoption service in the future, 
including Special Guardianship. 

 
June 2010 

Jan 2009 Teenage Pregnancy 
 

Panel Review  Item requested by Sheila Clarke (13
th
 Jan 

meeting). 
The OSC meeting on 16/03/09 agreed to 
receive an officer report at the June 
meeting. (A similar report will go to 
Cabinet on 09/04/09). 

 
 
January 2010 

 
 
 
Jan 2009 

 
 
Child protection – STATUTORY ANNUAL  
Safeguarding                  REPORT 

 
 
 
Officer report 

 As a result of the verbal report on ‘The 
Impact of the Baby P Case’ given by 
Howard Cooper (13/01/09), it was agreed 
that a further update report would be 
produced in the future. 

 
 
 
June 2010 

P
a
g
e
 2

3



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
March 
2009 

 
 
Proposed Children in Care Council 

 
 
Officer report 

  
 
A future progress report will be produced 
on the Children in Care Council (CCC) 
and reps from CCC are to be invited in 12 
months time 

 
 
 
16 March 09 

  
Aiming High 

 
Officer report 

 Officer report presented at Sept 09 OSC 
– Committee a further report in the future 
with an invitation to parents. 

 
June 2010 

  
Members visit to Eddison Learning in Essex 

 
Report by Cllr Harney 

  
Members report to OSC on 17.9.09 

 
Complete 

  
LINk Forum review of Procurement process 
for Parenting and Prevention Commissioning 

   
Officer report  

 
 

  
Members visit to Children Homes 

 
Issue discussed at 
02.06.09 

 Lead officer presented options for 
member visits at OSC 17.09.09 – Future 
Member visits to submitted to OSC for 
information. 

 
Complete  

      

P
a

g
e
 2

4



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

REPORT 2 

SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:  16/03/10 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Topic Description  Topic 
suggested by 

How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Completion Date 

    

 
The identification of deprivation and the impact on learning outcomes  

 
Cllr Harney and 
supported by OSC 
meeting on 
16/03/09 

 
Consider for inclusion on 
the work programme for 
the 2009/10 municipal 
year  

 

 
Impact of alcohol on children 

Cllr Doyle and 
supported by OSC 
meeting on 
16/03/09 

Possible joint scrutiny 
work with Social Care 
and Health Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 
Surplus in school budgets (held by some schools) 

 
Cllr Smith 

Consider for inclusion on 
the work programme for 
the 2009/10 municipal 
year 

 

 
One to one tuition 
 

   

 
LINk Forum review of the Procurement process for Parenting and 
Prevention Commissioning. 

Agreed by the 
Children Services 
OSC meeting to 
discuss Call-In on 
20/04/09 

A report will be presented 
to a future meeting –  

 
 

 
Children’s Centres 

 
Cllr Doyle 
 

Proposed at 17.09.09 
OSC – poss panel review 

 

Young People and Community Safety Cllr Clarke 
Supported by OSC 
– 16.11.09 

Poss. Joint review with 
Sustainable Communities 
OSC. 

 

    

    

P
a
g
e
 2

5



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

REPORT 3  
PROPOSED OUTLINE MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR  

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 16/03/10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Date Topic Description  
  

16 March 2010 Youth Outreach (Scrutiny panel review 09/10) – Recommendations progress report 

 Children in Care Council – Officer progress report and CCC representatives to attend 

 0-19 Commissioning (Call-in by Wirral Parent Partnership Organisation)  

 Officers visits to care homes – officer report 

 Music Service – Officer report  

 Q3 performance monitoring – Officer report 

 Q3 Financial monitoring – Officer report 

Meeting Date Topic Description  
  

  June 2010 Transition from Children to Adults – Officer Report 

 Safeguarding  (Child Protection) – Annual Officer Report 

 Extended Schools – officer report 

 Aiming High – officer progress report  

 Adoption Service – 6mthly/Annual report 

  

  

  

  

Meeting Date Topic Description  
  

Sept 2010 Parenting and Family support strategy (“Think Family”) – final version report 

  

  

P
a

g
e
 2

6



Children & Young People OSC 
Work Programme  

  
 

REPORT 4 

PROGRESS REPORT ON IN-DEPTH PANEL REVIEWS 
CHILDREN  AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 16/03/10 

 

 

 Title of Review Members of Panel Progress to Date Date Due to  
report to 
Committee 

    

 
Literacy Levels at Key  
Stage 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Sheila Clarke (chair) 
Frank Doyle 
Tony Smith 
 

 
Draft scope agreed at OSC meeting on 11th Nov. 
Data gathering has commenced. 
Visits to three primary schools have taken place; one 
further visit is due to take place later in March. 
‘Interviews’ with key officers have also commenced; 
others are due to take place during March / April. 
Report finalised during July/August 09. 
Report presented to 21 Jan 2010 OSC 
 
Recommendations supported by OSC  
Report to be presented to Cabinet 
Outcomes of recommendations report be presented to 
OSC in due course. 

 
21 Jan 2010 
 
 

 
 
“Narrowing the gap” – 
Impact of deprivation 
funding review 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Shelia Clarke (Chair) 
Frank Doyle 
Tony Smith 
Tom Harney 
Cherry Povall 
Paul Hayes 

 
 
Draft scope agreed 17.09.09.  
Initial Review panel meeting held Nov 09. 
First round of school meetings – Jan 2010 
Further school meetings – 24 Feb 2010 

 

    

P
a
g
e
 2

7



P
a

g
e
 2

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Council Excellence. 

UPDATES FROM 1st FEB ARE IN RED 

AGREED WORK PROGRAMME. 
 

This is a new, cross cutting committee. In order to bring all the elements together, it 
is suggested that the work programme is designed around the four themes of the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment, which is how Council Excellence will be judged 
in future. This is a much broader inspection regime than the CPA, and looks at all 
the public sector in Wirral and how it is contributing to the well being of Wirral 
Residents. 
 

There are four key themes: 
 

1. Sustainability, (which is not just environmental but social and economic as well.) 

2. Tackling inequality, disadvantage and discrimination. 

3. People whose circumstances make them vulnerable 

4. Value for money. 

 
The three key questions the inspectors will ask are: 
 

§ How well do local priorities express community needs and aspirations 
§ How well are outcomes and improvements being delivered? 
§ What are the prospects for improvement? 

 
They will use (sparingly) a red and green flag system to flag up where we are 
doing well and where we have real problems that need attention. 
 
I would suggest we approach the work programme like this: 

1. Ask the Audit Commission for an explanation of how the Comprehensive 
Area Assessment will work, and in particular what they understand each key 
theme to mean, any immediate problems they are aware of, and what work 
they believe it would be useful for the committee to do in monitoring 
progress. Also ask for any examples of best practice the committee could 
look at. 

2. Ask the officers to do a SWOT analysis on each theme (Strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities and threats – these reports may lead to further 
reports and perhaps some subcommittee working.) 

3. Ask for a presentation from key partners on their contribution to the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment and the way in which they would like to be 
working with the Council. 

4. Arrange visit/s to other authorities to learn from best practice. 

5. In the last meeting of the year, assess progress against each theme, 
highlighting any problems that need to be tackled, or any major successes or 
gains that with a bit of a push could gain excellence for the people of Wirral. 

Page 29



Report  
UPDATED REPORT FOR THE SCUTINY BOARD WHICH INCLUDES PROGRESS MADE AT MEETING 1st FEBRUARY – UPDATES ARE IN RED. 

MONITORING REPORT FOR COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 2009/2010 

 

Date of 
New 
item 

Topic Description 
How the topic will be dealt with 

Comments on Progress 
Complet

e? 

 

JULY 

1. Equality session 

2. Comprehensive Area Assessment 

Members to agree work programme 
based on four themes 

a) Sustainability 

b) Tackling inequality, disadvantage and 
discrimination 

c) People whose circumstances make 
them vulnerable 

d) Value for Money  

Circulation of LGIU briefing. 

Presentation by Audit Commission 
covering key themes, key questions and 
any suggestion for areas to be considered 
by committee.  

LGIU briefing distributed.  

16TH  

SEPT 

1. Presentation by Audit Commission 

Covering key themes, key questions and 
any suggestion for areas to be considered 
by committee. 

 

Sustainability 
 Bill Norman  

(Sustainability Unit) 

Jim Wilkie (Social and Economic 
sustainability) 

Tackling inequality, disadvantage and 
discrimination.  

(Choose officer following first meetings 
presentation/training etc.) 

People whose circumstances make 
them vulnerable 
(John Webb/Alan Stennard?) 

Value for Money – Ian Coleman   . 

Presentation on the Comprehensive 
Area Assessment by Peter Forrester of 

the Audit Commission 

Minutes: 

Mr P Forrester of the Audit Commission gave a 
presentation on the Comprehensive Area 
Assessment (CAA), which was the new way of 
assessing how well people were being served 
by their local public services. 

It would look at how public services worked 
together and would focus on local, as well as 
national priorities, to provide a robust, but 
proportionate assessment of local services that 
would be reported directly to the public  in  

 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



16TH  

SEPT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. SWOT analysis of each of the four CAA themes. 

Officers to report on a Strengths, 
Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats 
analysis of each theme and identify 
further work that could be undertaken by 
the committee or specialist 
subcommittees to improve the council’s 
performance 

Members to decide on further areas of 
work arising from above. 

 

 straightforward language. It was intended that 
improved accountability would strengthen local 
democracy and a two way relationship would 
assist in the scrutiny function. 

He outlined the factors that contributed to the 
area and organisational assessments, which 
were now in progress and commented that the 
final assessments would be shared with local 
partners in September/October 2009. Any 
remaining reviews would be resolved in early 
November and on 10 December 2009 a new 
website, ‘oneplace’, would be operational with 
the first set of CAA reports published in 
straightforward, jargon-free language. 

Resolved – 
1. That the presentation be noted. 

2. That the presentation be circulated 
to members of the Committee.  

--------------------------------------- 

SWOT Minutes: 

Further to minute 12 (1 July 2009), the Deputy 
Chief Executive/Director of Corporate Services 
reported that officers had considered how best 
to develop the Committee’s work programme 
and were at present undertaking a piece of 

work in relation to a SWOT analysis on each 

theme of the CAA assessment, which it was 
proposed to present to the next meeting of the 
Committee. 

  

Resolved – That a further more detailed 
report be presented to the next meeting. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



19th 

NOV 

 

1. Joint or individual presentation from 
partners on their contribution to CAA, 
their relationship with the Council and 
any joint working to improve results. 

(Through Local Strategic Partnership or LAA 
Board?) 

2. Members to decide on areas to monitor 
and ways to improve joint working and 
possible connections with other 
Scrutiny Committees. 

Partner members to report on their 
contribution to CAA. Possibly include LAA 
targets at this point? Information for 
members on what to monitor and how to 
improve joint working. 

The Deputy Chief Executive/Director of 
Corporate Services gave a presentation in 
relation to an Evaluation of the four 
underpinning themes in Comprehensive Area 
Assessment (CAA), which were included in the 
scrutiny work programme of the Council 
Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

• Sustainability  

• Tackling Inequality 

• Protecting the vulnerable 

• Value for Money 
The CAA placed a focus on self-assessment 
for the Council and the Partnership and he 
outlined what had been learned from the 
evaluation exercise, including the need to – 

• Ensure the capture of local 
knowledge; 

• Ensure that the voice of the 
community is represented in plans 
and in feedback to the public; 

• Improve communication of partnership 
successes; 

• Ensure a proactive approach to 
sharing learning on joint 
commissioning across the partnership; 

• Continue to improve performance 
management of shared partnership 
objectives and targets. 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



19th 

NOV 

  
He proposed that the outcomes of CAA would 
be reported to Council Excellence on 1 
February 2010, together with an action plan to 
address CAA area outcomes and findings of 
partnership evaluation. The delivery of the 
activity could be the subject of scrutiny by 
Council Excellence, with a particular focus on 
the underpinning themes agreed as part of the 
work programme. In response to comments 
from Members in relation to the availability of 
the full version of the Council’s self 
assessment, the Director agreed to consider 
how best to disseminate information to 
Members in advance of it being made available 
publicly on the Audit Commission website. He 
agreed also to investigate the information 
contained within press releases copied to 
Members. 

Resolved – That the presentation be noted. 

 

 

FEB 3. Review progress on each theme, 
highlighting successes and problems. 

This should be set against the earlier 
SWOT analysis to demonstrate tangible 
results 

Each officer to report on their own theme, 
highlighting progress made, key 
achievements, problems still to be 
tackled. 

. 

  

 Throughout the year visit/s to be 
arranged to examples of best practice   

Facilitator Ian Coleman   

 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



1st 
FEB 

2010 

General Financial matters  

(Including underachieved income from golf 
courses) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------- 
Performance Monitoring Report (Q3) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------- 
Office Accommodation Update – Strategic 
Asset review 
At the Council Excellence Scrutiny Committee, 
held on 19 November 2009, members 
requested a progress report on the Office 
Accommodation element of the Strategic asset 
Review.  
 
 

Officer Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officer Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officer Report 

The Director of Finance provided information 
on the treasury management position, 
monitoring of the prudential indicators, the 
position regarding Council Tax, National 
Non Domestic Rate, general debt and cash 
income collection and the payment of 
benefits. 

Resolved – 

 (1)          That the report be noted. 

 (2)          That the concerns of the 
Committee in relation to underachieved 
income from golf courses for the last three 
years be brought to the attention of the 
Cabinet. 

----------------------------------------------------------- 

The Deputy Chief Executive/Director of 
Corporate Services gave a detailed 
presentation to highlight the key 
achievements and performance issues 
which had been identified in the 2009/2010 
third quarter monitoring period. 

Resolved – 

That a Year End Report be presented to 
the next meeting of the Committee upon 
those projects/indicators in the Red 
sector of the Performance Summary, 
where critical milestones have been 
missed or there is serious slippage. 

----------------------------------------------------------- 

The Director of Law, HR and Asset 
Management provided a detailed update on 
the work being undertaken in accordance 
with the Strategic Asset Review (SAR) to 
rationalise office accommodation to achieve 
at least a 20% (£1m) reduction in 
accommodation costs by 2011. 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



  

 

 

--------------------------------------------------------- 

Community Cohesion - Update 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

--------------------------------------------------------- 

Review of Scrutiny Work Programme  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officer report 

Resolved – 

 (1)          That the report be noted. 

 (2)          That a further update be presented 
to the next meeting of the Committee. 

----------------------------------------------------------- 

The Head of Policy and Performance 
provided an update in relation to how the 
Council continued to work towards 
improved community cohesion. 

Resolved – 

 (1)          That the update be noted. 

 (2)          That the frequency of more 
detailed updates in relation to community 
cohesion be considered as part of the work 
programme at the next meeting of the 
Committee. 

 (3)          That the Corporate Policy Team 
Briefing Note be circulated to all Members 
of the Committee. 

----------------------------------------------------------- 

The Chair presented an update to the 
agreed work programme. 

Resolved –  

That a Work Programme for the 2010/2011 
municipal year be considered at the next 
meeting of the Committee and any issues to 
be included within it be notified to the Chair 
direct. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



 

JULY 

 

 

SEPT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOV 

 

 

 

TRAINING 
 

Facilitator - Jacqui Cross (Equality and 
Diversity Officer), Ged Smyth (NRAC Auditor) 
and Steve Talbot (Staff Development Manager) 
________________________________________ 

Facilitator Ian Coleman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 

Corporate Equality and Cohesion Manager 

TRAINING 

Equality Impact Assessments 

Recognising People’s Different Needs through 
the Use of Equality Impact Assessments 
_____________________________________ 

Finance Training 

Minutes: 

The Chair referred to Finance training that had 
been arranged by the Director of Finance on 30 
September and 7 October 2009. Although all 
members of the Council had been invited, the 
training was of particular relevance to members 
of this Committee and she urged members to 
attend if it was possible for them to do so. 

_____________________________________ 
Community Cohesion 

The presentation focused on “what must happen in 
all communities to enable different groups of people 
to get on well and live well together”.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

6



Report 2 

SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME FOR COUNCIL EXCELLENCE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10  

 

Topic Description Topic suggested by How the topic will be dealt with Estimated Completion Date 

Office Accommodation element of the 
Strategic Asset Review   

Council Excellence Scrutiny 
Committee on 19/11/09. 

Officer report to Council 
Excellence meeting on 01/02/10. 

Further report requested for 
meeting on 17/03/10.  

 

Freedom of Information Act  Item deferred from 01/02/10 until 
17/03/10 

 

Performance Monitoring –  

Year End Report on those 
projects/indicators in the Red sector of the 
Performance Summary, where critical 
milestones have been missed or there is 
serious slippage. 

Council Excellence Scrutiny 
Committee on 17/03/10. 

Report requested for meeting on 
17/03/10. 

 

Community Cohesion –  

The frequency of more detailed updates 
in relation to community cohesion be 
considered as part of the work 
programme at the next meeting of the 
Committee. 

Council Excellence Scrutiny 
Committee on 17/03/10. 

To be considered for inclusion on 
the 2010/11 Work Programme. 

 

The Draft Work Programme for the 
2010/2011 municipal year. 

Council Excellence Scrutiny 
Committee on 17/03/10. 

To be discussed at the Council 
Excellence meeting on 17/03/10 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



MONITORING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
ECONOMY AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 2009 / 2010 

 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic 
will be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

June 2009 
 

Wirral’s response to the recession 

 

Officer report   
Report noted at 15.09.09 OSC 

 

Sept 2009 DMO Implementation plan Officer report  
 
12 Jan 2010 

Report noted  
Further report requested (15.09.09) 
regarding detailing on costs and 
outputs “Partners for Tourism Growth” 
 
 
 

 
Committee 
noted contents 
of progress 
report on 
12.01.10 

June 2009 Taking forward the Investment Strategy 

 

Officer report   
Report at later date 

 

June 2009 Power and Infrastructure 

 

Officer report   
Report at later date 

 

June 2009 Housing Market Renewal 

 

Officer report  
 

 
Progress noted of Housing Market 
Renewal Initiative April 08 – Mar 09 
 
 

 
Report noted at 
12.01.10 

June 2009 Choice Based Letting 

 

Officer report  
15 Mar 2010 

 
Report to March OSC  

 

June 2009 Homelessness 

 

Officer report  
15 Mar 2010 

 
Report to March OSC 

 

June 2009 Update on major development schemes 

STANDING ITEM  

Verbal officer reports  Update reports noted 
15.09.09 
23.11.09 
12.01.10 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



P
a

g
e
 4

0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



UPDATE ON WORK PROGRAM : HEALTH AND WELLBEING OSC-  
25/03/10  

 
 

New Reports to assist in monitoring the Committee’s work programme 
 
It was agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs Group in September 2008 to use the following 
reports to monitor the work programme for each Scrutiny Committee. The last item on 
each Scrutiny Committee agenda should be ‘Review of the Committee Work Programme’.  
 
 
Report 1 - Monitoring Report for Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
This report will list all items that have been selected by the Committee for inclusion on the 
work programme for the current year. 
 
It will also include items, such as previous Panel Reviews, where recommendations have 
been made to Cabinet. It is important that the implementation of these recommendations 
is monitored. Otherwise there is no measure of the success of scrutiny. 
 
For each item on the work programme, the report will give a description, an indication of 
how the item will be dealt with, a relative timescale for the work and brief comments on 
progress.  
 
 
Report 2 - Suggestions for Additions to Work Programme  
 
The Work Programme for the Committee should be reviewed at each meeting. This will 
include members having the opportunity to ask for new Items to be added to the 
programme. This report will list any newly suggested items. Committee will then have the 
opportunity to agree (or not) for them to be added to the programme.  
   
 
Report 3 - Proposed Outline Meeting Schedule for the Municipal Year 
 
The report will, for each scheduled Committee meeting, list those items which are likely to 
be on the meeting agenda. This will give the opportunity for Committee members to take a 
greater lead in organising their work programme. 
 
 
Report 4 - Progress Report on In-Depth Panel Reviews 
 
This report will give a very brief update on progress / timescales for in-depth panel reviews 
which are in the ‘ownership’ of the Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

 

REPORT 1 
MONITORING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

HEALTH AND WELL BEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE : 2009 / 2010 
 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

Feb 2008 
 

Hospital Discharge Review Panel Review Report due 
March 2009 

Final report presented to 
Committee on 25

th
 March 2009. 

Recommendations to be monitored. 
Initial Action Plan due in April 09. 
Follow-up report presented in Nov 
09. Further update report due in 
March 2010.   

 

July 2008 
 

Transforming Adult Social Care Officer reports  Report to Committee 2nd Sept 08 
and 24th Nov 08. 
Subsequent reports to follow. 
Call-In meeting held on 4

th
 Dec 08. 

Further reports to meeting on 22 
June 2009, 8 September 2009 and 
19 Jan 2010.   

 

July 2008 
 

Update on Wirral Respond & Convey Pilot 
(NW Ambulance service) 

Officer Report  Report to Committee 2nd Oct 08 
Visit to Emergency Control Centre 
to be arranged (delayed at 
present). 

 

July 2008 
 

Alcohol services, including geographical 
differentiations in the borough 

Initial officer report 
which may lead into an 
‘in depth’ panel review. 

 Report to Committee 24th Nov 08. 
Possible future scrutiny review. 
Oct 09 - Alcohol Strategy will be 
subject to an in-depth Review by 
the Scrutiny Programme Board.  
Report on alcohol-related hospital 
admissions due to Committee in 
Jan 2010. 
Report deferred until June 2010. 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

2



 

 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

July 2008 
 

Update on Children’s Transition to Adult 
Social Services 

Initial officer report. 
Children’s Services 
Scrutiny Committee 
has also requested a 
similar report in Jan 09. 
A joint panel review 
involving both 
committees may follow. 

 Report to Committee in Jan 09. 
Follow-up report due in January 
2010. 
OSC meeting in Sept 09 agreed 
“possible review to include 
meetings with young people who 
have moved through the transition 
and some who do not get support 
as adults”.  
Further report to Committee in Jan 
2010 detailing the merging of 
children’s and adult’s staff into a 
central team. A further report was 
requested for 12 months time (ie, 
January 2011).  
A member also requested that a 
panel of members be created in the 
new municipal year to undertake 
visits to special schools to talk to 
18/19 year olds about their 
experience of the transition 
process.  

 

July 2008 Review of Meals on Wheels contract Officer report  Report to committee in Nov 08. 
Agreed for further report to 
Committee in approx one year’s 
time. Follow-up report to Sept 09 
meeting. 

 

July 2008 
 

Reducing health Inequalities in the borough 
Health Inequalities Action Plan – A 
recommendation in the Action Plan reads: 
“Ensure that Scrutiny has a programme to 
monitor progress on the Health Inequalities 
Action Plan, and that this programme includes 
a focus on the preventative agenda as well as 
on health service delivery.   

Officer reports  Presentations to Committee on 
20th Jan 09, 25th March 09 and 8

th
 

Sept 09. 
Further update reports expected in 
March 2010 to include progress on 
the BME Needs Assessment. 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

Sept 2008 Individual Budgets Officer report   Report to Committee in Nov 08. 
Report back on pilot project due in 
Sept 09. 
Report on Personal Budgets 
accepted by Committee in Jan 
2010.  

 

Sept 2008 IDeA Healthy Communities Peer Review Officer Report  Report to Committee 2nd Oct 2008. 
Subsequent reports to follow.  

 

Oct 2008 Reform of funding for Support & Care in 
Britain 

Officer Report  Report to Committee in Nov 08. 
Further report due to a future 
meeting. 
Report on ‘Joint Commissioning 
Strategy for carers’ accepted by 
Committee in Jan 2010. Further 
report requested in 12 months time. 

 

Jan 2008 Possible presentation by Professor Ken 
Wilson - Hospital Readmissions and 
depression  

Presentation to 
Committee 

   

Jan 2008 Public Interest Disclosure Act – Adult Social 
Services follow-up of PIDA disclosure 

Officer Report   Report to a future meeting once the 
issue has been fully discussed by 
the Audit & Risk Committee. 
Reports due to meeting in Jan 
2010.  
Reports to Committee in Nov 2009 
and in Jan 2010.  

 

March 
2009 

Homelessness and Health 
 

Officer Report  Report due to committee in Nov 09. 
Further report due in June or Sept 
2010. 

 

March 
2009 

Support for people with dementia in hospital 
and in the community 

Panel Review March 2010   

March 
2009 

Update report on ‘Valuing People Now’ and 
Wirral Learning Disability Partnership Board 
 

Officer Report  Report to Committee in June 2009. 
Further report due to a future 
meeting. 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



 

 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

March 
2009 

LINkS – How is LINkS progressing and how 
can the Scrutiny Committee best work with 
LINks 

Joint meeting  Members of LINkS Board attended 
reception prior to OSC meeting on 
10

th
 Nov 09. Protocol for joint 

working due to be discussed at 
OSC meeting on 19 Jan 2010. 
Protocol agreed at Committee 
meeting in Jan 2010. (Protocol also 
agreed by LINkS Board in early Jan 
2010). 

 

March 
2009 

Dignity in Care Officer Report  Report to Committee in Sept 09. 
Members invited to join Dignity in 
care Forum, which is being 
established. A further report is due 
to the OSC meeting in Jan 2010.  
The Wirral ‘Dignity in Care’ Working 
Group was formed at the end of 
2009. Possible report back to 
Committee in 2010/11 municipal 
year.   

 

June 2009 Members training session on Personalisation 
agenda 

Training session  Training session for all Council 
members to be held on 29

th
 Oct 09.  

 

Sept 2009 Provision of single sex wards at Arrowe Park 
Hospital 

Officer Report  Report to Committee in Nov 2009. 
A further report is due in June 
2010. 

 

Sept 2009 Heart of Mersey – Chief Executive Robin 
Ireland 

Presentation    

Sept 2009 Follow-up report on the ‘Out of Hospital’ 
scheme operated by VCAW 
 

Report  Report due to Committee in March 
2010. 

 

Sept 2009 Swine Flu Officer Report  Regular update reports to 
Committee.  

 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



 

 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

Nov 2009 Early Intervention Strategy for older people 
living independently 

Officer Report  Issue raised by Sandra Wall. 
Committee agreed to a report to a 
future meeting.  
Suggest a report in the 2010/11 
municipal year. 

 

Jan 2010 ‘Your Reason, Your Way – Reducing 
Smoking Campaign’ 

Presentation  Presentation to Committee in Jan 
2010. Further report back 
requested in six months time.   

 

Jan 2010 Care Quality Commission Annual 
Performance Assessment 2008/9 

Officer report  Report to Committee in Jan 2010. 
Further report back requested in six 
months time.   

 

Jan 2010 Joint collaboration between Countess of 
Chester and Wirral University Teaching 
Hospitals  

Officer report  Report to Committee in Jan 2010. 
Further reports requested in the 
future.    

 

      

      

      

      

P
a

g
e
 4

6



 

 

REPORT 2 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME   

HEALTH AND WELL BEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE : 25/03/10  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topic Description  Topic 
suggested by 

How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Completion Date 

    

Offer of training on knowledge and understanding of NICE and how 
NICE guidance can be used to devise some important questions for 
scrutiny.  
 

Ann Bridson   

    

    

    

    

    

    

P
a
g
e
 4

7



 

 

REPORT 3  
PROPOSED OUTLINE MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR  

HEALTH AND WELL BEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE : 2009 / 2010 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Topic Description  

  

22/06/09 
 
 
 

Transforming Adult Social services - Update 
Valuing People Now – Implementation 
LINks Annual report 
Hospital Discharge Action Plan – Progress report 
Process and Outcomes of the ‘Warrens’ consultation 
Committee Work Programme for 2009 / 10 
 

08/09/09 
 
 

Transforming Adult Social services - Update 
North West Ambulance Service – Presentation 
Meals on Wheels – Progress report 
Q1 Performance and Financial Monitoring Report 
Health Inequalities 
Dignity in Care 
 

28/10/09 
 

Members training session on the Personalisation agenda 

10/11/09 
 
 
 

Hospital Discharge Action Plan – Update  
Q2 Performance and Financial Monitoring Report 
Additional Co-opted members 
Update on Swine Flu  
Adult Social Services Charging Policy for Service Users Residing at ‘In House’ Supported Living Units (PIDA) 
Single sex wards - WUTH (Pat Higgins) 
Homelessness and Health (Lesley Hilton) 
Personalisation training session (held on 28/20/09) – opportunity for follow-up questions / discussion 
Update on Care Quality Commission assessment process (Annual Health Check) 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

8



 

 

 
 Meeting 

Date 
Topic Description  

  

19/01/10 
 
 

Update on Children’s Transition to Adult Social Services (Peter Tomlin) 
Performance and Financial Monitoring Report (John Webb) 
Proposed protocol for working between the Health & Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Wirral LINkS 
(Report from the Chair – Cllr Ann Bridson) 
Update on Additional Co-opted members (John Webb) 
PIDA – Adult Social Services – Charging Policy – Service Users residing at “in house” supported living units 
during the period 1997 to 2003 
PIDA – Charging Arrangements for Supported Living in Wirral 1997 to 2003 
Options for Change (Cabinet report from 26 Nov 09) 
Collaboration between Wirral University Teaching Hospital and Countess of Chester 
Presentation – “Your Reason; Your Way – Stop Smoking Campaign” 
Care Quality Commission Judgment 
Transformation of Adult Social Services – Personal Budgets 
Joint Commissioning Strategy for Carers 
Committee referral from Council Excellence OSC (Financial Monitoring) 
 

25/03/10 
 

Update report from Dementia Scrutiny Panel 
Performance and Financial Monitoring Report 
Joint ‘End of Winter’ report on hospital admissions (WUHT / Wirral NHS / Social Services)  
Annual Health Check 
Hospital Discharge Action Plan – Update  
Health Inequalities – Update on BME Needs Assessment 
Progress report on ‘Out of Hospital’ scheme 
HIV Services (Initial response to referral from Notice of Motion at Full Council – 14/12/09) 
North West Ambulance Service – Foundation Status Consultation???? 
Update on Additional Co-opted members (John Webb) 
Work Programme Update 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

9



 

 

REPORT 4 
PROGRESS REPORT ON IN-DEPTH PANEL REVIEWS 

HEALTH & WELL BEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE : 25/03/10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Title of Review Members of Panel Progress to Date Date Due to  
report to 
Committee 

    

Dementia Review 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillors 
Ann Bridson (Chair) 
Sheila Clarke  
Denise Roberts 
Chris Teggin 
 

Scope agreed. 
Planning of review is ongoing. 
‘Evidence’ gathering meetings have commenced. 
Meetings have taken place with representatives of the 
Third Sector.  
A focus group involving carers was held at the 
Devonshire Centre (Age Concern) 
 
Update as at 16/02/10: 
A number of managers and consultants have been 
‘interviewed’ at Arrowe Park hospital and at Cheshire & 
Wirral Partnership Trust. 
An individual meeting with a carer has been held. 
Meetings with Wirral NHS (PCT) are planned. 
Further meetings with carer groups are also anticipated. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

P
a

g
e
 5

0



Report  
 

UPDATED REPORT FOR THE SCUTINY BOARD WHICH INCLUDES PROGRESS MADE AT MEETING 20th JANUARY 2010 – UPDATES ARE IN RED. 

 
MONITORING REPORT FOR SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2009/2010 

Date of 
New item 

Topic Description How the topic will be dealt with Comments on Progress Compl
ete? 

JUNE WORK PROGRAMME 

PLUS ADDITIONS 

- Resolved  
That the supplementary paper listing the reports 
from chief officers on key issues during the year 
be amended to include the additional items raised 
by Members, and that this form the basis of the 
committee’s work programme for the current 

municipal year. 

 

21STSEP 

2009 

Road Safety Update 

(to include details of RTA’s caused 
by alcohol misuse) 

Technical Services 
Progress report on delivering Corporate Priority 
2.4: Reduce the number of people killed or 
seriously injured in road accidents 

Minutes: 

The Director of Technical services submitted a report 
detailing the progress made in improving road safety 
and reducing the number of people injured on 
Wirral’s roads, and the comprehensive programme of 
ongoing and proposed actions by the Council and its 
partners in respect of road safety, which aim to 
achieve the road safety objectives set out in the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and Wirral Local Area 
Agreement. 

Resolved – 

(1)  That the Committee note the progress in 
improving road safety performance and analysis of 
casualty data outlined in this report; 

(2)  That the Committee endorse the proposed Road 
Safety Action Plan for 2009/ 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

1



21STSEP 

2009 

Allotment Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________________________ 

Golf Courses Security 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________ 

Regeneration 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes: 

The Director of Regeneration reported upon the work of 
the Allotment Development Officer and other issues 
related to allotments provision and development.  The 
report also included a petition requesting the provision of 
an allotment site on land near Gilroy Road, West Kirby. 

The Allotment Development Officer made progress in a 
number of areas.  Approximately 15 sites had been visited 
and assessed as potential new allotment sites and at the 
present time 5 of these were being considered: 
(i)   The Warrens, Thingwall (ii)  Sandringham Avenue, 
Hoylake (iii)  Broadway, Greasby (iv)  Gilroy Road , West 
Kirby (v)   Mosslands Drive, Wallasey 

Resolved (8:2) – 

 (1)  That the work of the Allotments Development Officer be 
noted. 

 (2)  That further reports be submitted to this Committee on 
possible allotment sites and any financial implications, and 
subject to further work by officers, endorses the 
development of the five sites currently being considered. 

 (3)  That officers look into the possible transfer of 
Sandringham Avenue and Wingate Allotments to the 
respective allotment societies as a community asset 
transfer.  
________________________________________________________ 

Minutes: 

The Director of Regeneration submitted a report 
outlining the current arrangements  for security 
on golf courses. 

 He reported that a major review of the Parks and 
Countryside Service, including golf, was currently 
being undertaken in the form of the Parks and 
Countryside Service Procurement Exercise 
(PACSPE) to explore service delivery options and 
developing a business case for undertaking a 
procurement exercise for the service.  This would be 
the subject a further report to Cabinet, and could 
result in changes to the management of the municipal 

golf courses. 

 Resolved - that the report be noted.  

 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



21STSEP 

2009 

 
Carbon Reduction Progress Update 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

Interim Report Flood Working Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Regeneration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________ 

Technical Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minutes: 
The Director of Technical Services presented a report 
which updated Members on the various projects 
currently being undertaken by Technical Services to 
achieve the Corporate Objective to ‘Reduce the 
Council’s Carbon Footprint’, as set out in the 
Council’s Corporate Plan. 

Members were asked to note the progress made 
to date on the Project Plan (Appendix 1) and to 
endorse the further initiatives proposed. 

 Resolved – 

1. That the Committee note and endorse the 
performance and progress of the various Council 
‘Carbon Footprint Reduction’ projects to date 
undertaken by the Technical Services Department. 

2. That the Committee supports the proposal to take 
advantage of the national climate change campaign 
“Act on CO2“ detailed in section 4.2.2 

3. That the Committee supports the proposals 
detailed in section 4.4.2 with regards to phase 4 of 
the IEEP 

__________________________________________________________ 

The Director of Technical Services submitted a 
report providing an update on the progress made 
to date by the Wirral Flood Group and seeking the 
views of members regarding the constitution and  
future direction of the work of this group. 
The Wirral Flood Group comprised the Elected Members 
Steering Group, relevant Council officers from those 
service areas with responsibility for addressing the 
recommendations set out in Sir Michael Pitt’s report, plus 
representatives from the Environment Agency, United 
Utilities, and Wirral NHS. Its work to date included: 

§ The agreement of Terms of Reference for the Group 
(Appendix 1) 

§ The establishment of the collaborative cross-
departmental and agency working on matters related to 
flooding. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



21STSEP 

2009 

  
§ The opportunity for each agency and organisations 
responsible for flood prevention and for the 
management of water in general to bring to a multi-
agency audience their individual roles and 
responsibilities and current work plans 

§ The compilation of a specific list of Wirral’s flooding “hot 
spots”. This list is in its early stages and will remain a 
“live” document. It is intended for this document to be 
available to officers and Elected Members, and allow 
them up to date information on each identified “hot spot” 
and the current status of work to alleviate or prevent 
flooding in that location. 

§ The establishment of a Council, Environment Agency 
and United Utilities Operational Group which seeks to 
identify the cause of flooding at each hot spot, who is 
responsible and more importantly what is being done to 
reduce the risk of flooding at those locations. 

The new Flood and Water Management Bill which was due 
to come into force in early 2010 would place a statutory 
responsibility on local authorities to lead on local flood risk 
management. County and unitary authorities would also be 
responsible for local flood risk assessment, mapping and 
planning in relation to ordinary watercourses, surface run-
off and groundwater. They would also lead the production 
of local surface water management plans and the 
agreement of the associated programmes of work with all 
stakeholders. 

As a result of these new responsibilities , there was a need 
to recruit some expertise in the area of flood management 
to fully understand the root cause of flooding and be in a 
position to carry out a Surface Water Management Plan for 
Wirral, which was a recommendation of Pitt report and 
also a statutory responsibility for local authorities in the 
new Flood and Water Bill.  It was envisaged that with this 
expertise and the ongoing dialogue at both operational and 
Elected Member level  all identified “hot spots” of flooding 
on Wirral would be addressed.  

Through the development of a database capturing the causation 
of flooding at these “hot spots”, the Group would be in a position 
to engage in a more meaningful manner with the residents and 
property owners who have been affected by these floods. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

4



21STSEP 

2009 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In addition to this, the Health, Safety & Resilience Team was 
currently preparing a specific guidance document for property 
owners on advice they can take both proactively (purchasing 
sand bags, fitting air brick covers, ensuring road gullies are free 
from detritus, etc) and also containing the relevant contact 
emergency details of the agencies with a responsibility for a 
flooding response. 

The Director reported that the alleviation of flooding was a 
complicated issue, with a range of European, Central 
Government and Regional directives and strategies 
requiring actions from most departments of the council and 
many external agencies. The establishment of the Wirral 
Flood Group had provided an opportunity for improved co-
ordination to ensure that the various agencies were 
working together to alleviate flooding on Wirral. To date 
the Wirral Flood Group had been successfully chaired by 
the Health, Safety & Resilience Operations Manager, but 
as the work of the Group evolved and having regard to the 
joint Elected Member and officer representation from a 
constitutional perspective, Members’ views were 
particularly welcomed on the future Chairperson 
arrangements for the Group. 

There was a general discussion regarding the working 
arrangements for the Group and it was suggested that the 
membership should be extended to include community 
groups from the Greasby and Leasowe areas and other 
“hot spots” for flooding on Wirral. 

Resolved – That the Committee: 

1. Note the progress to date of the Wirral Flood 
Group; 

2. Endorse the proposal to recruit additional flood 
management expertise as part of the existing 
Technical Services’ staffing establishment; 

3. That the Health, Safety and Resilience Operations 
Manager, continue to chair the Group and that the 
committee agree in principle to the involvement of 
community groups, subject to a further report to 
the next meeting on this issue.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

5



18th NOV 

2009 

Outstanding actions former Culture 
Tourism and Leisure O&S Committee  
 
_________________________________________________________ 

 
Highway & Engineering Services Contract 
– Six Month Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regeneration  

____________________________________________________ 

 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deferred until later meeting 

_________________________________________________________ 

The Director of Technical Services submitted a report 
updating Members on the progress of the new Highway 
and Engineering Services Contract after the first six 
months and seeking endorsement to report back to this 
committee in Summer 2010 with a formal Annual Contract 
Review, including the outcome of the proposed Gateway 5 
Benefits Realisation Review described in the report. 

The Director gave a verbal update outlining the Gateway 
Review process and the next phase in terms of benefits 
realisation, management and governance arrangements, 
and partnership working to assess various issues affecting 
the contract and develop a co-ordinated response.  He 
gave a brief operational overview for the first six months of 
the contract indicating that progress had been good and 
work delivery for most of the works had been completed 
beyond expectations.  

Mr Cameron Neil, Regional Manager for Colas, introduced 
Mr Jim Nimmo, Wirral Contract Manager, and his 
management team. 

Mr Neil outlined the Colas Group structure, its vision to 
provide quality services in a streetscene partnership with 
the Council, management and governance arrangements, 
successes to date, and future investment in terms of 
people, fleet and a new depot. 
 

Resolved – That the Committee: 

 (1)  Note the progress of the new Highway and 
Engineering Services Contract during the first six 
months as outlined in this report; 

 (2)  Endorse the proposal for a formal Annual 
Contract Review report in Summer 2010, including the 
outcome of the proposed Gateway 5 Benefits 
Realisation Review described in the report. 

 (3)       Request an update to a future meeting on the 

revenue implications referred to in paragraph 5.1 of 
this report. 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

6



18th NOV 

2009 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Environmental Quality Update 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
_________________________________________________________ 

Young People and Community Safety* 

Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________ 

Regeneration 

The Director of Technical Services submitted a progress 
report on the Local Environmental Quality (LEQ) delivery 
plan for 2009/10 which had been prepared and monitored 
by his department in partnership with Biffa Waste 
Services, Regeneration, Neighbourhood Management 
Projects and local housing associations. 
 
The Director reported that overall, the actions contained 
within the delivery plan were very effective with regards to 
improving environmental quality for Wirral residents and 
contributed to the achievement of both the LAA and 
“Narrowing the Gap” local target.  Wirral had achieved its 
LAA performance indicator “stretch target” for 2008/09 and 
had received a reward grant of £818,635. This indicator 
measured the cleanliness of streets and open spaces with 
regards to litter, detritus, graffiti and fly posting. 
 
The Director gave a brief update of the actions/projects 
detailed in the delivery plan including the proposed 
extension of the on-street recycling scheme to the West 
Kirby, Hoylake, New Brighton, Oxton and Moreton areas of 
the borough.  

Resolved – That the Committee note of the progress 
made in the LEQ 2009/10 delivery plan and endorse 
the proposed expansion of the on-street recycling 

receptacles detailed in section 4.2.5 

_________________________________________________________ 

The Director of Regeneration presented a report providing 
an indication of the scale of young peoples’ involvement in 
community safety issues, ranging from criminal activity to 
issues of anti social behaviour and the interventions 
available across Wirral to prevent their involvement in this 
type of behaviour. 

The Director responded to range of issues raised by 
members:  

-          the effectiveness of Section 30 Dispersal 
Orders and the displacement of anti social 
behaviour problems into adjoining areas 

-          alcohol related problems and the reasons why this     
was a particular issue in certain areas compared to other 
areas with a low level of incidences 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

7



18th NOV 

2009 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-          monitoring of both off licence and licensed 
premises    

-          support initiatives and re-offending rates 

The Chair referred to the decision of the Children and 
Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16 
November, that the issue of Young People and Community 
Safety be agreed as topic for joint scrutiny review with this 
committee. 

Resolved – 

(1)  That the Committee note the contents of this 
report.  

(2)  That this Committee agree to carry out a joint 
scrutiny review of Young People and Community 
Safety with the Children and Young People Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

8



20THJAN 

2010 

Waste Recycling/ Minimisation Update 
(to include Recycling of Kitchen Waste) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Technical Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
The Director of Technical Services presented a report 
updating Members on the current position of the Recycling 
and Waste Minimisation Delivery Plan for 2009/10. 
The report also included Technical Services’ response to 
the Kitchen Waste Collection Trial Scheme Notice of 
Motion under the section headed Future Considerations. 
 
In response to the Notice of Motion, a Senior Officers 
Working Group (SOWG), representing all senior waste 
managers from all Merseyside authorities, would help each 
authority produce a business case for food waste 
treatment in the long term. It was recommended that 
Members await the outcome of this project, supported by 
the Waste Resource Action Programme, before any 
decisions to embark on kitchen waste trials are made. The 
report would be completed prior to the need for districts to 
respond to the MWDA on future kitchen waste 
requirements. 

In line with current Government thinking that prevention 
was the most efficient way to manage waste (in both cost 
and environmental terms), Technical Services would 
explore waste prevention opportunities in a more detailed 
manner and report their findings to a future Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny meeting.   

 Resolved – That the Committee: 

 (1)  Note the progress made in the Recycling and 
Waste Minimisation Delivery Plan for 2009/10; 

(2)  Note the key dates regarding future waste 
management treatment options detailed in section 
5.2.1 of the report; 

 (3) Request officers report back to Committee on the 
findings of the Merseyside Waste Partnership Options 
report on Food Waste Collections in time for the 
Council to make an informed decision on the future 
management of this element of Wirral’s household 
waste stream. 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



 

20THJAN 

2010 

Streetscene Environment Services 
Contract – Third Annual Review 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
_________________________________________________________ 

 
Dog Control on Beaches 

 
 
 
_________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Outstanding actions former Culture 
Tourism and Leisure O&S Committee  

 

Technical Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________ 

 
Regeneration 
 

____________________________________________________ 

 
 

Regeneration 

The Director of Technical Services reported upon the 
current position with the Environmental Streetscene 
Services Contract and the development of the service. 

Since the contract was awarded to Biffa in June 2006, a 
close working partnership with the company had 
transformed Environmental Streetscene Services in Wirral 
and had resulted in a continuous improvement of service 
quality which was recognised and acknowledged in the 
most recent Comprehensive Performance Assessment. He 
set out the contract management framework and reported 
upon progress in relation to the following key work streams 
that had been agreed in January 2009 by the Waste 
Partnership Board, for implementation in 2009/10:- 

 -          Garden Waste: Procurement of Treatment 
Facilities 
-          Street Cleansing and Enforcement: Improving 
Environmental Quality with particular focus on litter and 
detritus 
-          ERIC Service and Fly Tipping Removal 
-          CRM Springboard Project 
-          Compaction and Contamination 

The Director introduced Gary Bowles and Mark Hodkinson 
from Biffa’s management team who gave a presentation 
on progress and key achievements. 

 

Resolved – That the Committee note the progress of 
the contract during the past year outlined in the report. 

 
_________________________________________________________ 

Report to consider the controls for dogs on amenity 
beaches – Deferred until later meeting 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________ 

 

Deferred until later meeting 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

0



8TH  

MAR 

2010 

 
Alcohol and Community Safety* 
(to include safety park lighting) 
 
 
 
Flood Working Group Progress Report 
 
 
 
 
 
Dog Control on Beaches 
 
 
 
Outstanding actions former Culture 
Tourism and Leisure O&S Committee  
 
 
Review of existing policy regarding Shop 
Display and Advertisement Board Licences 
 
 
 
Trading Standards Update Report 
 

 
Regeneration 
 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
 
Regeneration 
 
 
 
Regeneration 
 
 
 
Technical Services 
 
 
 
 
Regeneration 
 

 
Report upon the impact of alcohol on the community safety 
agenda. 
 
 
 
Progress report of the Member Working Group established 
to consider the Council’s response to climate change and 
flooding issues, in particular in response to the recent Pitt 
Review 
 
 
 
Report to consider the controls for dogs on amenity 
beaches 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to consider existing policy regarding Shop Display 
and Advertisement Board Licences 
 
 
 
Report on the work of the Trading Standards division and 
related legislation 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



Report 2 

SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME FOR COUNCIL EXCELLENCE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10  

 

Topic Description Topic suggested by How the topic will be dealt 
with 

Estimated Completion 
Date 

i.) Golf Courses Security– September meeting. 
(Councillor J Williams)   

ii.) Recycling of Kitchen Waste  - January 
meeting as part of the waste Recycling 
Update. 

(Councillor Redfern)   

iii.) Interim report on the work of the Flood 
Working Group - September meeting. 

(Councillor Moseley)   

iv.) The addition of safety park lighting under the 
Community Safety item for the March meeting  

(Councillor Taylor).   

v.) Outstanding actions arising from the last 
meeting of the former Culture , Tourism and 
Leisure Overview and Scrutiny Committee  - 
September meeting. 

(Councillor Hale)   

vi.) Ongoing Road Safety Updates to include 
details road traffic accidents which are caused 
by the misuse of alcohol. 

(Councillor Mitchell).   

Joint scrutiny review of Young People and 
Community Safety with the Children and Young 
People Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Sustainable Communities Scrutiny 
Committee – 18

th
 November 2009 

  

P
a

g
e
 6

2



Topic Description Topic suggested by How the topic will be dealt 
with 

Estimated Completion 
Date 

Review of existing policy regarding Shop Display 
and Advertisement Board Licences 

 

Councillor Harry Smith  Agreed by Sustainable Communities 
Scrutiny Committee – 20

th
 January 

2010 to request an officer report for 
the meeting on 8

th
 March 

 

Review of Winter Maintenance Arrangements 

 

Referral from Cabinet (minute 250 
– 14/01/2010)  

 Agreed by Sustainable Communities 
Scrutiny Committee – 20

th
 January 

2010 to be added to the work 
programme 

 

Trading Standards Update Report 

 

Councillor Peter Reisdorf  Agreed by Sustainable Communities 
Scrutiny Committee – 20

th
 January 

2010 to request an officer report for 
the meeting on 8

th
 March 

 

 
   

* These items are subject to consultation with the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



P
a

g
e
 6

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Page 1 of 9  17/02/2010 10:29:30 

UPDATE ON WORK PROGRAM : SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD -  
04/03/10  

 
 

New Reports to assist in monitoring the Committee’s work programme 
 
It was agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs Group in September 2008 to use the following 
reports to monitor the work programme for each Scrutiny Committee. The last item on 
each Scrutiny Committee agenda should be ‘Review of the Committee Work Programme’.  
 
 
Report 1 - Monitoring Report for Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
This report will list all items that have been selected by the Committee for inclusion on the 
work programme for the current year. 
 
It will also include items, such as previous Panel Reviews, where recommendations have 
been made to Cabinet. It is important that the implementation of these recommendations 
is monitored. Otherwise there is no measure of the success of scrutiny. 
 
For each item on the work programme, the report will give a description, an indication of 
how the item will be dealt with, a relative timescale for the work and brief comments on 
progress.  
 
 
Report 2 - Suggestions for Additions to Work Programme  
 
The Work Programme for the Committee should be reviewed at each meeting. This will 
include members having the opportunity to ask for new Items to be added to the 
programme. This report will list any newly suggested items. Committee will then have the 
opportunity to agree (or not) for them to be added to the programme.  
   
 
Report 3 - Proposed Outline Meeting Schedule for the Municipal Year 
 
The report will, for each scheduled Committee meeting, list those items which are likely to 
be on the meeting agenda. This will give the opportunity for Committee members to take a 
greater lead in organising their work programme. 
 
 
Report 4 - Progress Report on In-Depth Panel Reviews 
 
This report will give a very brief update on progress / timescales for in-depth panel reviews 
which are in the ‘ownership’ of the Committee. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 65



Page 2 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

REPORT 1 
MONITORING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD: 2009 / 2010 
 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

June 2009 
 

Equality and Diversity Monitor progress of 
other scrutiny 
committees on this 
issue.  
 

 Report due to Scrutiny Programme 
Board in March 2010.  

 

June 2009 Member’s Scrutiny Questionnaire Spokespersons panel 
to review the 
responses of the May 
2009 questionnaire and 
report back to the 
Scrutiny Programme 
Board 
 

 Follow-up report with 
recommendations approved by 
Scrutiny Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009.   
Report due to Scrutiny Programme 
Board in March 2010. 

 

Sept 2009 Implementation of the Wirral Alcohol Strategy 
 

Panel review  Topic approved by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009. 
  

 

Sept 2009 One Council 
 

Panel review  Topic approved by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009. 
Member’s working group took place 
on 12

th
 March.  

 

Sept 2009 How to encourage greater involvement of 
residents and community organisations in 
scrutiny processes. 

Future report  Topic approved by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009 as a result of the 
member’s questionnaire.  
 

 

Sept 2009 Identify and promote examples of good 
scrutiny practice.  

Future reports  Topic approved by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009 as a result of the 
member’s questionnaire. 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

6



Page 3 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

Sept 2009 Identify training opportunities for scrutiny 
members 

Future reports  Topic approved by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009 as a result of the 
member’s questionnaire. 
A verbal report will be provided at 
the meeting on 4

th
 November 2009. 

Meeting on 14
th
 January was 

informed that a meeting of the chief 
executive, relevant Portfolio holder 
and the Member Training Steering 
Group will be held on 8

th
 February. 

A further report will be produced for 
the Scrutiny Programme Board on 
4
th
 March. 

 

Sept 2009 Oversee the production of a revised version 
of the annual scrutiny questionnaire for 
members 

Future reports  Topic approved by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009 as a result of the 
member’s questionnaire. 
Report due to the March meeting. 

 

Nov 2009 Protocol for Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) Officer report  Draft ‘Councillor Call for Action’ 
protocol agreed by Scrutiny 
Programme Board in Nov 2009. 
Subsequently, agreed by Cabinet 
on 9 Dec 2009.  

 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



Page 4 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

Nov 2009 Review the format and relevance of the 
current format of the Forward Plan 

Officer report  Topic agreed by Scrutiny 
Programme Board on 4

th 
November 

2009. Officer report produced for 
the Jan 2010 meeting. 
The January meeting agreed that, 
in order to make the Forward Plan 
more user-friendly and to assist the 
scrutiny function, the Cabinet be 
requested to agree to the following: 
a)               That officers include 
within the Forward Plan a more 
informative narrative of the key 
decisions to be taken, together with 
more accurate timescales. 
(b)              That, for a short trial 
period, Chief Officers be required to 
submit to the next appropriate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
a brief explanation of new items 

included in the Forward Plan. 

 
Subsequently, the Cabinet agreed 
on 4

th
 February that: 

(1)  Cabinet resolves that officers 
include within the Forward Plan a 
more informative narrative of the 
key decisions to be taken, together 
with more accurate timescales. 

(2)  Cabinet notes that Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees set their 
own agenda and can call on 
officers to present additional reports 
to meet their requirements. 
 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

8



Page 5 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

Jan 2010 Update on New Legislation Officer report  Report presented to the January 
2010 meeting. A further report will 
be produced regarding the 
response to the ‘Strengthening 
Local Democracy’ consultation 
process. 
A members training session on the 
impact of new legislation on 
scrutiny will be undertaken as part 
of the member Development 
training programme.  

 

 

      

      

      P
a
g
e
 6

9



Page 6 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

REPORT 2 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME   

SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD : 04/03/10  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topic Description  Topic 
suggested by 

How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Completion Date 

    

None  
  

   

    

    

    

    

    

    P
a

g
e
 7

0



Page 7 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

REPORT 3  
PROPOSED OUTLINE MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR  

SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD : 2009 / 2010 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Topic Description  

  

27/05/09 
 
 
 

Terms of Reference 
Review of Scrutiny Work Programme 
Legislation and Guidance (from Centre for Public Scrutiny) 
Survey of Overview and Scrutiny in Local Government 2008 
Wirral Council Scrutiny Questionnaire 
Finance and performance Monitoring 
Scrutiny Chairs’ visit to Warrington 
 

07/09/09 
 
 

Clarification of the Terms of Reference 
Response to the Wirral Member’s Scrutiny Questionnaire 
Work Programmes of the five Scrutiny Committees 
Review of the current issues on the Forward Plan 
Scrutiny Programme Board – Work Programme  
 

04/11/09 
 
 
 

Councillor Call for Action – draft protocol 
Training needs for scrutiny members 
Work Programmes of the five Scrutiny Committees 
Review of the current issues on the Forward Plan 
Scrutiny Programme Board – Work Programme 
 

05/01/10 
 
 

Terms of Reference of Scrutiny Programme Board, especially in relation to the ‘Call-in’ process 
Progress report on referral of members training to Cabinet 
Progress report on the Alcohol Scrutiny Review, including agreement of the Scope Document 
One Council – How should this item be progressed? 
Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) protocol – Record and evidence trail 
Scrutinizing the Forward Plan 
Update on new legislation affecting scrutiny 
Annual Scrutiny Report for Wirral  
Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) – Good Scrutiny Awards 2009 
Work Programmes of the five Scrutiny Committees 
Review of the current issues on the Forward Plan 
Scrutiny Programme Board – Work Programme  

P
a
g
e
 7

1



Page 8 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

 
 Meeting 

Date 
Topic Description  

  

04/03/10 Work Programmes of the five Scrutiny Committees 
Review of the current issues on the Forward Plan 
Scrutiny Programme Board – Work Programme 
Report on progress of Equality and Diversity in all departments of the Council 
Protocol for scrutinising the Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) 
Revised version of the Annual Scrutiny Questionnaire for members 
Referral from Cabinet regarding scrutiny of the Forward Plan 
‘One Council’ Scrutiny Review - Scope  
Members training – verbal update from members’ training steering group 
Allocation of call-In notices 
Scrutiny leaflet  

  

  

  

  

P
a

g
e
 7

2



Page 9 of 9       17/02/2010 10:29:30 

REPORT 4 
PROGRESS REPORT ON IN-DEPTH PANEL REVIEWS 

SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD : 04/03/10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Title of Review Members of Panel Progress to Date Date Due to  
report to 
Committee 

    

Access of alcohol to young 
people in Wirral 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillors: 
Dave Mitchell  
Chris Meaden  
Sue Taylor  
Ann Bridson 
 

Update as at 16/10/09: 
Topic approved by Scrutiny Programme Board on 14

th
 

September 2009.  
Volunteers to join the panel are Councillors Dave 
Mitchell, Cherry Povall, Chris Meaden, Sue Taylor and 
Ann Bridson. 
The nominated departmental link officer is Sue Drew, 
Deputy Joint Director of Public Health at Wirral NHS. 
The first panel meeting, to discuss the scope of the 
review, is currently being arranged.   
Update as at 17/12/09: 
Panel members met on 6

th
 November 2009 to discuss 

the scope for the review. 
The proposed Scope document for the review is due to 
be discussed at the Scrutiny Programme Board meeting 
in January 2010.  
Cllr Cherry Povall has decided that she will no longer be 
a member of the Review panel.  
An introductory presentation to panel members took 
place on 16

th
 December 2009. Participants included 

officers from Wirral NHS, DAAT, Children & Young 
Peoples department, Trading Standards and Licensing.  
Update as at 10/02/10: 
A meeting of the panel members with a representative of 
the police is planned in the near future.  

 

‘One Council’ 
 
 

To be agreed A Working Group of all members of the Scrutiny 
Programme Board was held on 12/02/10 to discuss the 
scope of this review. A draft scope for the review will be 
discussed by the Scrutiny Programme Board on 4/03/10. 

 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

WIRRAL COUNCIL    
 
SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD   - 4 MARCH  2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
DRAFT PROTOCOL - SCRUTINY OF THE CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION 
PARTNERSHIP 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee has new powers arising 
from The Police and Justice Act (2006), to: 
 

(a) review or scrutinise the decisions made, or other action taken, in 
connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their 
crime and disorder functions; and 

 
(b) make reports or recommendations to the local authority with respect to 

the discharge of those functions. 
 
Officers have prepared a draft protocol for the scrutiny of Wirral’s Crime & Disorder 
Reduction Partnership (CDRP) Partnership and it is presented here for the Scrutiny 
Programme Board’s consideration and also to be considered separately by the CDRP.  Once 
comments/amendments are received and this Protocol is finalised and adopted by the 
Council it will be adhered to when the CDRP is under scrutiny. 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The provisions contained within section 19 - 21 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 

extends the remit of local authorities to scrutinise the functioning of the local CDRP in 
England. These requirements were enacted by the Crime and Disorder (Overview and 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 that came into force for local authorities in England on 30 
April 2009 and their implementation is covered by Home Office Guidance for the 
Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters - England. 

  
1.2 In Wirral, the scrutiny of the CDRP is to be undertaken by the Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which has been designated the 
“Crime and Disorder Committee” under Paragraph 1, Section 19 of Part 3 of the Act. 

 
1.3  The members of CDRPs are required to take part in scrutiny locally. This includes the 

main partners (‘responsible authorities’): local authorities, fire and rescue authorities, 
police authorities, the police, primary care trusts in England), plus the ‘co-operating 
bodies’: probation, NHS trusts, proprietors of independent schools, further education 
institutions.  

 
1.4 As suggested in the Guidance, this Protocol is being developed to lay down the 

mutual expectations of partners and scrutiny members of the community safety 
scrutiny process. This is to help make sure that this scrutiny is constructive and that 
this power is used effectively alongside the other powers of council overview and 
scrutiny. 

 
  

Agenda Item 11

Page 75



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

2. Introduction 
 

 2.1     Scrutiny provides a positive opportunity for non Executive Councillors to influence the 
crime and disorder reduction priorities locally for the benefit of local Communities.  
Section 19 - 21 introduce a general duty to look at partnership activity and community 
safety issues in a local area. This role can involve contributions to strategy 
development, review of performance of the partnership in implementing the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Reform programme, and in depth reviews into particular issues of 
local concern which need partnership solutions. The Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a key responsibility to monitor the impact and 
outcomes of the Local Area Agreement crime and disorder targets. The performance 
of the CDRP is included in the overall borough-wide Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment. 

 
3. Principles of Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 
 
3.1     Community safety is intended to allow people to go about their daily lives in the widest 

sense in safety. Improving community safety is by tackling crime and disorder and 
more widely about local partners working together, with local communities, to keep 
everyone safer. This includes: promotion; prevention; early intervention; enforcement; 
reducing re-offending; and tackling key drivers of crime such as alcohol/drug misuse 
and social exclusion. 

 
3.2  The primary goal of Crime and Disorder scrutiny is to improve community safety for all 

Wirral people.  Crime and disorder scrutiny in Wirral must involve scrutiny members 
and CDRP partners working closely together in a positive, objective and constructive 
manner.  The role of scrutiny is to provide an effective challenge to community safety 
partners and for the voices and concerns of Wirral communities to be heard. There 
are opportunities for: 

 
  Enhanced dialogue with the partnership 

         Non Executive Councillors to contribute to and influence community safety 
priorities locally 
Enhanced democratic accountability in respect of community safety initiatives 
delivered in partnership 
Councillors, partners and the wider community to investigate local concerns 
around community safety and innovative ways of addressing these 
Reviewing delivery against agreed priorities and performance targets (taking 
into account and contributing to other assessment e.g. Comprehensive Area 
Assessment). 

 
3.3  By making recommendations for improvement, scrutiny may make a contribution to 

achieving the shared aim of increasing community safety (reducing crime and 
disorder) in Wirral. It may assist in areas such as: 

 
Integration of community safety with other strategies 
Policy development e.g. criminal justice 
Overseeing and reviewing the delivery of joint responses on community safety 
Creating a clearer link between partner agencies and the public on community 
safety 
Understanding and increasing community confidence e.g. fear of crime or anti-
social behaviour 
Neighbourhood management 

 

Page 76



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

3.4 Scrutiny is most likely to be successful in this role, and lead to outcomes that have a 
positive impact for local communities, if all parties to the community safety scrutiny 
process work co-operatively, from the basis provided by this Protocol, treating one 
another (and any occasional participants) with respect and courtesy. This co-operation 
involves a willingness to share knowledge, information and views and to develop 
mutual understanding about community safety as well as to carry out such duties as 
can reasonably be expected. 

 
4. Purpose of the Protocol 
 
4.1 The purpose of the Protocol is to define the manner in which the Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee may scrutinise the Wirral CDRP and 
the partners. Following the Protocol will foster a good working relationship between 
the CDRP and the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
throughout the scrutiny process. 

 
4.2 The Protocol sets out the mutual expectations of scrutiny members and CDRP 

members of the community safety scrutiny process.  

4.3 To enable the continued improvement of the scrutiny process the Protocol may be 
revised from time to time. Any revisions of the Protocol must be agreed by all of the 
interested parties. 

 

5.  Wirral’s Scrutiny Function 

 5.1 Scrutiny in Wirral is designed to drive improvement in public services by focussing on 
service outcomes. It does this by providing: 

• a ‘critical friend’ challenge to executive policy-makers and decision makers; and 

• a mechanism to allow the voice and concerns of the communities of Wirral to 
be heard. 

5.2 The terms of reference of the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, in its role as a Crime and Disorder Committee, should include the 
function of scrutinising the work of the CDRP and the partners who comprise it, 
insofar as their activities relate to the partnership itself. 

5.3 This will include: 
 

• considering actions undertaken by the responsible authorities on the CDRP. 

• making reports or recommendations to the Council (and partners) with regard to 
those functions; 

• including a list of issues which it needs to cover during the year in its work 
programme. 

 
6. Standards 
 
6.1 Crime and Disorder scrutiny must be, and must be seen to be, open and transparent. 

To this end any person involved in Crime and Disorder scrutiny must declare any 
personal and/or pecuniary interest that they have either: in 

 
 
 
 

Page 77



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

• the subject of any scrutiny review, or; 
 

• the matters to be considered at any meeting of the Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Wirral Borough Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct will apply to all members of the 
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee as well as to co-opted 
members and appointed members of that Committee. 

 
7. Recommendations:   
 
That the Scrutiny Programme Board be invited to comment/make amendments to this 
draft Protocol; and recommend that the Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, the CDRP and the Cabinet be consulted on the Protocol and it be 
revised in the light of any comments received, before it is presented to Council for 
adoption as a clarification of Scrutiny’s relationship with the CDRP. 

Page 78



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

          APPENDIX A 

 
Draft Scrutiny Protocol 
Scrutiny of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
 
1.     Introduction 
 
1.1  Wirral Borough Council has determined that its Sustainable Communities Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee shall be the Council's Crime and Disorder Committee as 
required under Paragraph 1, Section 19 of the Police & Justice Act 2006. 

 
1.2.  The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will, therefore, 

exercise the powers given to local authorities under Part 3 of the Act to scrutinise the 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership in their area and make reports and 
recommendations to the Local Authority and the partnership. 

 
1.3 This Protocol has been produced between Wirral Borough Council’s Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the respective partners comprising 
the Wirral Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership. 

 
1.4 This Protocol conforms with the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) 

Regulations 2009 and follows Home Office guidance on the implementation of Sections 
19 - 21 of the Act. Whilst continuing to observe these requirements, the Protocol may 
be revised by agreement between all the interested parties in order to continually 
improve the scrutiny process. 

 
1.5 To avoid any conflict of interests Wirral Borough Council Members who sit on the CDRP 

must not sit on the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

2. Principles of Scrutiny Operation 
 
2.1 Scrutiny in Wirral is positive, objective and constructive. It acknowledges good practice 

and recommends improvements where it feels that these would be of benefit. Scrutiny 
concentrates on service outcomes and seeks to add value to each service that it 
considers. 

 
2.2 Community safety and freedom from crime and disorder for the people of Wirral is 

dependent upon many factors including the services provided by those in the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Partnership. This shared responsibility will be acknowledged by 
scrutiny and will feature in scrutiny reviews. 

 
2.3 Scrutiny of the reduction of crime and disorder will be successful if all parties work 

together in an atmosphere of mutual respect and trust with an understanding and 
commitment to its aims. 

 
2.4 Organisations involved in scrutiny of crime and disorder must be willing to share 

information, knowledge and reports which relate to the delivery and success of services 
in Wirral and carry out duties that would be reasonably expected of them to enable 
crime and disorder scrutiny to be successfully undertaken. 

 

Page 79



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

2.5 At all times both officers and members of the organisations involved in crime and 
disorder scrutiny, representatives and members of the public will be treated with respect 
and courtesy. Matters of confidentiality will be treated as such. 

 
2.6   Crime and disorder scrutiny will be open and transparent.  Any person involved in crime 

and disorder scrutiny will always declare any personal or other pecuniary interest that 
they have either in a scrutiny exercise or during a meeting of the Scrutiny Committee in 
accordance with the Code of Conduct relating to standards of conduct and ethics. 

 
2.7   The scrutiny of crime and disorder will seek to improve services and service provision 

for the people of Wirral in order to increase community safety and reduce crime and the 
fear of crime in their borough. 

 
2.8 The scrutiny of crime and disorder matters will be conducted so as to allow the 

involvement of the public and local community groups in as relevant and practical way 
as possible. 

 
2.9 Crime and disorder scrutiny shall not to be used as a complaints procedure.  Case 

studies may, however, be used as part of supporting information for scrutiny exercises. 
 
2.10 The function of crime and disorder scrutiny is independent of the respective partners in 

the Partnership. 
 
2.11 The aim is to maximise the involvement of Wirral communities, voluntary sector 

organisations and members of the public in meetings and reviews. 
 
2.12 When it is considered appropriate experts and in some cases members of the public, 

will be co-opted onto the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for specific meetings or 
reviews. 

 

3.    The Wirral Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
3.1 All dates, times of meetings, agendas and reports, and subsequent minutes, of the 

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be published to meet 
at least the minimum statutorily required. All such information will be circulated to 
elected Members and the members of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership at 
least to the minimum so required.  This means that the Committee’s agenda will be 
circulated to all Members of the CDRP. 

 
3.2 At least once per year the Committee will consult the Crime and Disorder Reduction 

Partnership and through it, the partners on the annual work plan of the Committee. 
 
3.3 The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will advise the Crime 

and Disorder Reduction Partnership in advance of any programme of work or other 
scrutiny exercise that the Wirral Overview and Scrutiny Committee is intending to 
undertake in relation to the CDRP.  Notification of scrutiny may take the form of a 
statement at a meeting of the Committee. 

 
3.4 The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consult with the 

Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership on any draft reports prepared by it and 
recommendations made before they are published.  The following actions will be taken 
by the Committee when it produces a report or recommendations which will impact, or 
have the potential to impact, on community safety issues or upon the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Partnership or its partners: 

Page 80



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

 
(a) The draft report will be sent to the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 

and any relevant partners to be checked for factual accuracy.  
 

(b)  Copies of the final report or recommendations will be sent for comment to the 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership and those community safety 
partners that are affected by the report or recommendations. 

 
(c) The Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership and relevant community 

safety partners will be asked to provide a written response to the report or 
recommendations. The response should be provided within 15 working days 
of the date. If this is not possible the response should, with the agreement of 
the Committee, be provided soon as is reasonably practicable. 

 
(d) The Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership and the relevant partners will 

be given as much notice as practicable prior to any recommendations or the 
reports of the Committee being made public. 

 
3.5 Final reports will be presented to Wirral Borough Council and the Crime and Disorder 

Reduction Partnership.  They will be published on the Council’s website and circulated 
in accordance with the regulations on scrutiny of crime and disorder. 

 
3.6 The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will inform the Crime 

and Disorder Reduction Partnership in advance of any press releases relating to crime 
and disorder scrutiny.  

 
3.7 The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will at all times 

comply with the Constitution of Wirral Borough Council. 

 
4.    The Wirral Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
 
4.1 The Partnership and respective partners shall recognise and assist the Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee in fulfilling its role to provide objective 
and effective scrutiny of crime and disorder in Wirral. 

 
4.2 The Partnership and respective partners shall provide information relating to the 

planning and operation of crime and disorder reduction activities and strategies 
requested and required by the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. This will not, however, include confidential information that might impinge 
upon actual police operations or individuals, unless an individual gives consent for such 
information to be released. 

 
4.3 The Partnership and its respective partners shall provide the Sustainable Communities 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the information requested within 15 working 
days of the receipt of the request.  If this timescale cannot be met or the request cannot 
be complied with, the Partnership will, within the 15 working day deadline, give its 
reasons for not complying and will if possible suggest some alternative options. 

 
4.4 The Partnership will respond to crime and disorder scrutiny review final reports and/or 

recommendations within 15 days of receipt. A copy of such a response will be sent to 
Wirral Borough Council’s Cabinet Member responsible for Community Safety, to 
individuals who have contributed to the review, and to other relevant parties. If this 
timescale cannot be met the Partnership will, within the 28 day deadline, give its 
reasons for not complying and will if possible suggest some alternative options.  

Page 81



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

 
4.5 A separate Protocol and procedure has been agreed covering references to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee from Elected Members via the Councillor Call for 
Action. 

 
4.6 The Partnership will nominate a main contact person for each crime and disorder 

scrutiny exercise and maintain regular contact with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, attending in person when invited. 

 
4.7 The Partnership will ensure that officers attending Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meetings are able to answer questions openly and are given appropriate support by 
their line managers. 

 
5. Reviews and Revisions  
 
5.1 The publication of Regulations (Guidance May 2009) and good working practice has 

shaped this Protocol.  However, to enable the continued improvement of the scrutiny 
process it may be revised from time to time.  Any revisions must be agreed by all the 
interested parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
          
 

Page 82



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

WIRRAL COUNCIL    
 
SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD   - 4 MARCH  2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
WIRRAL COUNCIL MEMBERS’ ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY QUESTIONNAIRE 
– APRIL 2010 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.        Purpose of the Report 
1.1    To seek approval from the Scrutiny Programme Board to the second annual Members’ 

Overview and Scrutiny Survey. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 An annual survey was carried out last year as part of a framework to gauge 

perceptions about Overview and Scrutiny and draw together issues that can be used 
to influence its future direction. The findings of each year’s survey forms the basis of a 
report to the Scrutiny Programme Board. The results of this survey will be compared 
to the previous year and any emerging trends will be reported to the Board. 

 

2.2  The aim of the questionnaire is to assess perceptions about the effectiveness, added 
value and achievements of Overview and Scrutiny, and identify where improvements 
can be made.  It is proposed that the questionnaire be also sent to Co-opted members 
and Directors who have had areas of their service scrutinised.  A copy of the Overview 
and Scrutiny questionnaire is attached as Appendix A. 

 

2.3  The questionnaires will be sent out following approval by the Scrutiny Programme 
Board, and the results of the response analysis will be brought before the Board in 
due course. They will be used in the continuous improvement of the scrutiny process. 

 
3. Recommendation 
 
3.1 That the Scrutiny Programme Board be requested to approve the Annual Overview and 

Scrutiny Survey 2010 and consider a report and analysis of the findings in due course. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 83



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

         APPENDIX A 
 
 
WIRRAL COUNCIL MEMBERS’ ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
This is the second annual survey evaluating the effectiveness of Overview and Scrutiny, and 
how it can be improved.  This questionnaire is being circulated to all Members of the Council 
for completion as well as Co-opted Members and Directors who have had areas of their 
service scrutinised during 2009/10.   
 
The aim of the questionnaire is to assess perceptions about the effectiveness, added value 
and achievements of Overview and Scrutiny, and identify where improvements can be made. 
The feedback you provide on how you feel about Overview and Scrutiny is very important to 
me. 
 
I can only improve the quality of Overview and Scrutiny activity and how effectively work is 
carried out by listening to your experiences.  I will use the information you give me to identify 
practical ways in which improvements can be made. The results for this survey will be 
carefully analysed and presented to the Scrutiny Programme Board in due course. 
 
Please send your completed questionnaire to: 
 
Shirley Hudspeth 
Democratic Services Manager 
Town Hall 
Brighton Street  
Wallasey 
Wirral  
CH44 8ED 

Page 84



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

 
          
WIRRAL COUNCIL MEMBERS’ ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
Please print name:……………………………………………………………… 
{The questionnaire can be completed anonymously if you wish.} 
 
1. Please tick which Committee(s) you sit on: 
 

Scrutiny Programme Board  7  

Children and Young People 7 

Council Excellence                         7 

Economy and Regeneration           7 

Health and Well Being                    7 

Sustainable Communities               7 

None of the above                          7  

 
1a. Are you an: 
 

Elected Member        7     Co-opted Member  7          Director      7 
Cabinet Member     7 

 
1b. When did you last receive training on the Overview and Scrutiny function? 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
2.  What do you believe to be the main purpose of Overview and Scrutiny? 

……………………………………………………………………………………………. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………. 
…………………………………………………………................................ 
 
3.  Are you happy with the Scrutiny Officer support available to the Committees or 
would you like to see any improvements?    
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 

Page 85



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

4.  Scrutiny Programme Board 
Scrutiny Programme Board Members are requested to answer 3a. only and non 
Scrutiny Programme Board Members are requested to answer 3b and c. 
 
4a. If you are a Member of the Scrutiny Programme Board what role do you think the 
Board has in leading the development of Overview and Scrutiny and ways of working? 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
4b. If you are not a member of the Scrutiny Programme Board do you consider that 
you know enough about its role and its work programme.  
 

Yes   ?     No   ? 

 
4c. If you consider you don’t know enough about the Scrutiny Programme Board’s 
role and its work programme, what more information would you like to receive? 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
5. How successful has the Scrutiny Programme Board been in leading the  
development of Overview and Scrutiny and ways of working in its first year in 
existence? 
 

Unsuccessful  ?  Successful    ?      Very Successful  ? 

 
  
6. How effective do you feel the Call In process has been in holding the Executive to 
account for its decisions? 
 

Unsuccessful  ?  Successful    ?      Very Successful  ?      

 
7. One of the main roles of the Overview and Scrutiny function is to hold the Executive 
to account.  Overall how satisfied are you that Scrutiny has been able to hold the 
Executive to account over the past year?  
 

Very unsatisfied   ?     Unsatisfied   ? Satisfied   ?  Very Satisfied  ?      

 
7a. Does the Forward Plan assist Overview and Scrutiny Committees to hold the 
Executive to account? 
 

 Yes  ?   No  ?     Don’t Know ? 

 
7b. If you are not satisfied with the way in which Overview and Scrutiny has held the 
Executive to account please state what more you consider Scrutiny should be doing. 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 

Page 86



Shirley Hudspeth February 2010 

8. Another central purpose of Overview and Scrutiny is to influence the Executive to 
make tangible improvements to the policies and services provided by the Council and 
local Health Services that will ultimately benefit the people of Wirral. Overall, how 
satisfied are you that Overview and Scrutiny has influenced the Council and local 
Health Services to the benefit of the people and communities of Wirral? 
 
Please circle your choice 

     
Very unsatisfied    Unsatisfied   Satisfied   Very Satisfied 
 
9. Are you able to provide any examples where the work of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees has contributed to improved Council service?    
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
10. What do you consider to be the strengths of the current Overview and Scrutiny 
process? 
....................................................................................................................................................
.................................................................................................................................................... 
....................................................................................................................................................
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
................................................................................................................................................... 
 
11. Are there any aspects of the current Overview and Scrutiny process that you 
consider require improvement? 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
.................................................................................................................................................... 
 
Additional Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you very much for taking the time to complete this questionnaire. 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Equality and Diversity - Council Progress
	5 'One Council' Scrutiny Review - Progress Report
	7 Scrutiny Leaflet
	8 Work Programmes of Overview and Scrutiny Committees
	(b) Council Excellence
	(c) Economy and Regeneration
	(d) Health and Well Being
	(e) Sustainable Communities

	9 Review of Scrutiny Work Programme
	11 Draft Protocol - Scrutiny of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership
	12 Annual Scrutiny Questionnaire

